Warren-Boynton State Bank

New Berlin, lllinois

ILLINOIS COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT ACT

SUPERVISORY STATEMENT

“STATE OF ILLINOIS
COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT NOTICE

The Department of Financial and Professional Regulation (Department) evaluates
our performance in meeting the financial services needs of this community,
including the needs of low-income to moderate-income households. The
Department takes this evaluation into account when deciding on certain
applications submitted by us for approval by the Department. Your involvement
is encouraged. You may obtain a copy of our evaluation. You may also submit
signed, written comments about our performance in meeting community financial
services needs to the Department.”



Home Mortgage

Disclosure Act Notice

The HMDA data about our residential
mortgage lending are available online for
review. The data show geographic distribution
of loans and applications; ethnicity, race, sex,
age, and income of applicants and borrowers;
and information about loan approvals and
denials.

These data are available online at the
Consumer Financial Protection Bureau’s
website (www.consumerfinance.gov/hmda).
HMDA data for many other financial
institutions are also available at this website.
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April 1, 2025

This statement has not been reviewed or confirmed for accuracy or relevance by the FDIC.

Kevin L. Hermes, VP/CRA Officer
Warren-Boynton State Bank

702 W. II'linois Street 201 East State Street 332 North Main Street 3030 Spring Mill Drive
New Berlin, IL 62670 Modesto, IL 62667 Palmyra, IL 62674 Springfield, IL 62704
Ph: (217) 488-6091 Ph: (217) 439-7267 Ph: (217) 436-2411 Ph: (217) 787-0430

www.whsb.com



FEE SCHEDULE
04/01/2025

This disclosure contains information about terms, fees, and interest rates for some of the accounts we offer.

MISCELLANEOQUS FEES AND CHARGES

Miscellaneous Fees
Automatic Transfer between accounts held with us: $4.00
Check Printing: Fee depends on checks ordered.
Account Research or balancing: $50.00 per hour
Telephone Transfer from checking or savings: $5.00 per transaction
Garnishments or Levies: $75.00
Automatic Transfer of Funds for Overdraft Protection: $4.00

Negotiable Instruments
Cashier's Check: $5.00 - For Secure Checking Accounts fees are waived for two Cashier's Checks per month.

Wire Transfers
Outgoing: $25.00
incoming: $10.00
Foreign - Outgoing: $55.00
Foreign - Incoming: $10.00

Safe Deposit Services
Drilling: $200.00 or applicable rate
3x5: **
5x5; **
3x10; **
5x10: **
10 x 10: **
**: Contact local branch for current pricing

ATM/Debit Card
Cash Withdrawal at Foreign ATM: $2.00
Dollar Limit: $500.00 per day
Debit Card Replacement Fee: $10.00

Overdraft Fees
Overdraft (each overdraft paid): $35.00 This charge covers checks presented and represented, as well as in-person
withdrawals, and withdrawals by other electronic means, as applicable.
Returned ltem Fee (each): $35.00 will be charged each time an item (created by check or other electronic means)
presented for payment is returned due to insufficient funds in your account. The fee may be charged multiple tirmes on the
same item, and could be assessed as often as daily. There is no limit to the number of times the fee will be assessed on
the same item when presented multiple times.

Stop Payments
Stop Payments: $25.00 (all items)

OEPOSIT PRO, Ver. 25.1 10.006 Copr Finastra USA Corporation 1996, 2025. AR Rights Reserved. . - fl. - PADHICFRTIS\TISDISC




Rev. 01/2011
WHAT DOES WARREN-BOYNTON STATE BANK
DO WITH YOUR PERSONAL INFORMATION?

Financial companies choose how they share your personal information. Federal law gives
consumers the right to limit some but not all sharing. Federal law also requires us to tell you
how we collect, share, and protect your personal information. Please read this notice carefully
to understand what we do.

The types of personal information we collect and share depend on the product or service you
have with us. This information can include:

® Social Security number and credit history
® income and credit scores
¢ employment information and assets

When you are no longer our customer, we continue to share your information as described in
this notice.

All financial companies need to share customers' personal information to run their everyday
business. In the section below, we list the reasons financial companies can share their

customers' personal information; the reasons Warren-Boynton State Bank chooses to share;
and whether you can limit this sharing.

For our everyday business purposes-—
such as to process your transactions, maintain

your account(s), respond to court orders and Yes No

legal investigations, or report to credit bureaus

For our marketing purposes~ '

to offer our products and services to you No We don't share
For joint marketing with other financial '
companies No We don't share

For our affiliates’ everyday business purposes—
information about your transactions and No We don't share
experiences

For our affiliates’ everyday business purposes—

information about your creditworthiness No We don't share
For our affiliates to market to you No We don't share
For nonaffiliates to market to you No We don't share

Call (217) 488-6091- our menu will prompt you through your choices(s) or go to
www.wbsb.com




Warren-Boynton State Bank
CRA FILE

Bank & Branch Services

Warren Boynton State Bank has a main office and three branch locations.
These locations are as follows:

702 W. Illinois Street (Main office)
New Berlin, IL 62670

3030 Spring Mill Drive (Branch)
Springfield, IL 62704

201 East State Street (Branch)
Modesto, IL. 62667

332 North Main Street (Branch)
Palmyra, IL 62674

The services offered at the main banking office and the branch facilities
include a complete line of both deposit and loan products. Deposit accounts
available at all branch offices include Basic Checking, WB Interest Bearing
Checking, Money Market, Secure Checking, Interest Bearing Checking,
Savings, Christmas Club Savings, Business Checking, Business Money
Market, Business Interest Bearing Checking, WB Business Interest Bearing
Checking, Business Savings Account, Certificates of Deposit, Traditional &
Roth IRAs and Health Savings Accounts. Loan products available are all
types of consumer, real estate and commercial loans.

Other products available are Online Banking, a Mobile Banking Application,
Mobile Deposit Capture, Person to Person Payments (P2P), Bill Pay, My



Money Manager, TeleBank, Cash Management, Debit Cards & ATMs and

Trust Services.

There are no material differences in the availability or cost of the products or
services offered by the main bank or the branch offices. (The bank’s fees

are included.)

Office Hours:

Main Bank
Lobby

Drive-up
Springfield branch
Palmyra branch

Lobby

Drive-up

Modesto branch
Lobby

Mon - Fri
Sat.
Mon - Fri
Sat.

Mon - Fr1

Mon - Fri
Sat

Mon - Thu
Fri

Sat.

Mon - Fri

8:00am - 4:00pm
8:00am - 12:00pm
7:30am - 5:30pm
7:30am - 12:00pm

8:00am - 4:00pm

8:00am - 4:00pm
8:00am - 12:00pm
7:30am - 4:00pm
7:30am - 5:30pm
7:30am - 12:00pm

8:00am - 4:00pm



Warren-Boynton State Bank
CRA FILE

Bank Branches:

Warren-Boynton State Bank
702 W. Illinois St.

P.O.Box 19

New Berlin, IL 62670

Ph. 217/488-6091

Fax: 217/488-6216

Branch Offices:

3030 Spring Mill Drive
Springfield, [L. 62704
Ph. 217/787-0430

Fax: 217/787/0450
Census Tract #20

201 East State Street

Modesto, IL 62667

Ph. 217/439-7267

Fax: 217/439-5278

Block Numbering Area 9562.00

332 North Main Street
Palmyra, IL 62674

Ph. 217/436-2411
Fax:217/436-2536

Block Numbering Area 9562.00



2004:

2005:

2006:

2007:

2008:

2009:

2010:

2011:

2012:

2013:

2014:

Warren-Boynton State Bank
CRA FILE

Bank Branch Openings:

Warren-Boynton State Bank
3030 Spring Mill Drive
Springfield, IL 62704
Ph. 217/787-0430
Census Tract #20
None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None



2015:

2016:

2017:

2018:

2019:

2020:

2021:

2022:

2023:

2024:

2025:

None

None

Warren-Boynton State Bank
201 East State Street
Modesto, IL 62667

Ph. 217/439-7267

Block Numbering Area 9562.00
Warren-Boynton State Bank
332 North Main Street
Palmyra, IL 62674

Ph. 217/436-2411

Block Numbering Area 9562.00
None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None



2006:

2007:

2008:

2009:

Warren-Boynton State Bank

CRA FILE

Quarterly Loan-to-Deposit Ratios:

Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4

Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4

Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4

Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4

78.50%
83.86%
81.99%
83.75%

91.04%
85.67%
81.55%
90.47%

91.29%
95.94%
94.02%
94.42%

92.83%
92.50%
91.62%
93.96%

2010:

2011:

2012:

2013:

Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4

Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4

Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4

Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4

86.54%
86.90%
94.35%
94.32%

91.29%
91.83%
90.03%
91.33%

86.34%
84.51%
90.68%
94.29%

86.51%
33.61%
86.42%
90.15%



2014:

2015:

2016:

2017:

2018:

2019:

2020:

Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4

Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4

Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4

Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4

Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4

Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4

Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4

85.94%
90.29%
92.43%
95.22%

91.24%
89.04%
93.01%
95.28%

91.94%
93.56%
94.11%
96.05%

94.17%
92.79%
85.45%
83.88%

80.11%
81.07%
84.87%
88.49%

85.98%
88.99%
84.57%
85.63%

83.44%
85.27%
83.85%
84.67%

2021:

2022:

2023:

2024:

2025:

2026:

2027:

Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4

Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4

Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4

Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4

Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4

Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4

Q1
Q2
Q3

Q4

73.70%
72.90%
76.12%
80.84%

79.11%
81.13%
91.51%
100.97%

92.84%
38.08%
86.39%
89.56%

84.96%
88.59%
90.87%
89.37%

84.83%
89.71%
88.53%
87.24%



W.B. Bancorp, Inc.

Accountant’s Compilation Report and Financial
Statements

December 31, 2024 and 2023



Forvis Mazars, LLP

225 N. Water Street, Suite 400 Eﬂ Vi
Decatur, IL 62523 maza'rs

P 217.429.2411 | F 217.429.6109
forvismazars.us

Accountant’s Compilation Report

Board of Directors
W.B. Bancorp, Inc.
New Berlin, lilinois

Management is responsible for the accompanying financial statements of W.B. Bancorp, Inc.
(“Company”), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the related
statements of income, changes in stockholders' equity and cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have
performed the compilation engagements in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and
Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. We did not audit or review the financial statements nor were we
required to perform any procedures to verify the accuracy or completeness of the information provided by
management. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any form of
assurance on these financial statements.

The Company's policy is to prepare its financial statement on the parent-only basis in which the
investment in subsidiary is reported on the equity method. Accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America require preparation of consolidated financial statements to reflect all of the
accounts and activities of the subsidiary together with the parent. The Company's policy has no effect on
reported stockholders’ equity or net income.

Management has elected to omit substantially all of the disclosures and the display of comprehensive
income (loss) required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. If the
omitted disclosures and the display of comprehensive income (loss) were included in the financial
statements, they might influence the user's conclusions about the Company's assets, liabilities, equity,
revenue, and expenses. Accordingly, these financial statements are not designed for those who are not
informed about such matters.

Forvis Mazars, LLP

Decatur, lllinois
February 3, 2025

Forvis Mazars, LLP is an independent member of Forvis Mazars Global Limited



W.B. Bancorp, Inc.

(Parent Company Only)
Balance Sheets (Unaudited)
December 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023

ASSETS

Cash $ 263,969 $ 168,082

Investment in subsidiary - Warren-Boynton State Bank 22,978,437 22,405,040

Due from subsidiary 65,336 64,439

Farmer Mac stock 4,000 4,000

Goodwill 105,801 105,801

Total assets $ 23,417,543 $ 22,747,362

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common stock - no par value; authorized 10,000 shares;

Issued 4,407 shares and outstanding:

2024 - 3,838.50 shares; 2023 - 3,815.50 shares $ 386,194 $ 386,194
Additional paid in capital 1,636,471 1,633,431
Retained earnings 29,035,238 27,370,825
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (4,229,360) (3,094,088)
Treasury stock, at cost common:

2024 - 568.5 shares; 2023 - 591.5 shares (3,411,000) (3,549,000)

Total stockholders’ equity $ 23,417,543 $ 22,747,362

See Accountant's Compilation Report



W.B. Bancorp, Inc.

(Parent Company Only)

Statements of Income (Unaudited)

Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

Income

Dividend from Warren-Boynton State Bank
Other income

Total income
Expenses
Professional fees
Director fees
Miscellaneous fees
Total expense
Income before income tax benefit and equity in
undistributed income (distributions in excess) of
subsidiary

Income tax benefit

Income before equity in undistributed income
(distributions in excess) of subsidiary

Equity in undistributed income (distributions in excess)
of subsidiary

Net income

See Accountant's Compilation Report

2024 2023

1,511,591 $ 4,328,500
4,240 8,452
1,515,831 4,336,952
35,662 81,936
28,000 35,000
471 1,535
64,133 118,471
1,451,698 4,218,481
898 31,845
1,452,596 4,250,326
1,708,669 (2,205,844)
3,161,265 $ 2,044,482




W.B. Bancorp, Inc.

(Parent Company Only)

Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity (Unaudited)
Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

Accumulated

Other
Capital Additional Retained Comprehensive Treasury
Stock Paid In Capital Earnings Income {Loss) Stock Total
Balance, December 31, 2022 $ 386,194 §$ 1,608,745 §$ 26,455843 § (3,616,074) $ (56,514) $ 24,778,194
Cumulative impact of ASU 2016-13 - - (251,000) - - (251,000)
Balance, January 1, 2023 386,194 1,608,745 26,204,843 (3,616,074) (56,514) 24,527,194
Net income - - 2,044,482 - - 2,044,482
Other comprehensive income - - - 521,986 - 521,986
Treasury stock purchased (597 shares) - - - - (3,582,000) (3,582,000)
Treasury stock sold (20 shares) - 24,686 - - 89,514 114,200
Dividends paid - - (878,500) - - (878,500)
Balance, December 31, 2023 386,194 1,633,431 27,370,825 (3,094,088) (3,549,000) 22,747,362
Net income - - 3,161,265 - - 3,161,265
Other comprehensive loss - - - (1,135,272) - (1,135,272)
Treasury stock sold (23 shares) - 3,040 - - 138,000 141,040
Dividends paid - - (1,496,852) - - (1,496,852)
Balance, December 31, 2024 3 386,194 3 1636471 3 29,035238 § (4,229,360) $ (3.411,000) $§ 23,417,543

See Accountant's Compilation Report



W.B. Bancorp, Inc.

(Parent Company Only)

Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)
Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

Operating Activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to
net cash provided by operating activities
Undistributed (earnings) distributions in excess
Net change in
Due to/from subsidiary

Net cash provided by operating activities
Financing Activities
Proceeds from sale of treasury stock
Purchase of treasury stock
Dividends paid
Net cash used in financing activities
Increase (decrease) in cash
Cash, Beginning of Year

Cash, End of Year

Suppliemental Cash Flows Information
Cash paid for income taxes

See Accountant's Compilation Report

2024 2023
3,161,265  $ 2,044,482
(1,708,669) 2,205,844
(897) (31,844)
1,451,699 4,218,482
141,040 114,200
- (3,582,000)
(1,496,852) (878,500)
(1,355,812) (4,346,300)
95,887 (127,818)
168,082 295,900
263,969 168,082
- $ -




W.B. Bancorp, Inc.

(Parent Company Only)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2024 and 2023

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Method of Accounting - Income is reported on the accrual basis.

Investment in Subsidiary - Investment in subsidiary is recorded through the
use of the equity method of accounting.

Treasury Stock - Treasury stock is stated at cost. Cost is determined by the
first-in, first-out method.

Cash Flows - For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Company considers
all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less
to be cash equivalents.

See Accountant's Compilation Report



FINANCIAL INFORMATION
WARREN-BOYNTON STATE BANK

FOR YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024



WARREN-BOYNTON STATE BANK
New Berlin, lllinois

Comparative Statement

ASSETS:

Cash and due from Banks
U.S. Agency Securities
Municipal Securities
Corporate Bonds
FHLB/Title Co Stock
Net Loans

Federal Funds Sold
Bank Premises

Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Demand Deposits
Time & Savings
TOTAL DEPOSITS
Other Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
Equity Capital

TOTAL LIABILITIES & CAPITAL

(3000 omitted)

12/31/2024 12/31/2023 Net Change
$2,999 $3,491 ($492)
$20,217 $20,563 ($346)
$28,471 $30,205 ($1,734)

$0 $0 $0
$1,334 $1,337 ($3)
$194,251 $190,188 $4,063
$1,543 $1,674 ($131)
$1,742 $1,735 $7
($279) $244 ($523)
$250,278 $249,437 $841
$37,495 $39,092 ($1,597)
$179,859 $173,255 $6,604
$217,354 $212,347 $5,007
$8,240 $13,003 ($4,763)
$225,594 $225,350 $244
$24,684 $24,087 $597
$250,278 $249,437 $841



WARREN-BOYNTON STATE BANK
New Berlin, lllinois
Comparative Statement

INCOME

Interest & Fees on Loans & Leases
Interest on Federal Funds

Interest on Securities

Service Charge on Deposits

Other Income

TOTAL INCOME

EXPENSES

Officer & Employee Salary & Benefits
Interest on Deposits

Occupancy Expenses

Loan Loss Provision

Other Expenses

TOTAL

NET INCOME BEFORE TAXES

Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Securities/Assets

Adjusted Taxable Income
Income Tax

Adjusted Net Income

Dividends to WB Bancorp, Inc.*

NET INCREASE IN UNDIVIDED PROFITS

Charge Offs
Recoveries
Net Charge Offs

{$000 omitted)

12/31/2024  12/31/2023 Net Change
$10,864 $9,516 $1,348
$170 $219 ($49)
$1,236 $1,207 $29
$310 $292 $18
$285 $335 (350)
$12,865 $11,569 $1,296
$3,876 $3,506 $370
$3,915 $3,102 $813
$916 $857 $59
$135 $134 $1
$1,248 $1,192 $56
$10,090 $8,791 $1,299
$2,775 $2,778 ($3)
$0 $0 $0
$2,775 $2,778 ($3)
(3445) $655 ($1,100)
$3,220 $2,123 $1,097
$800 $879 ($79)
$2,420 $1,244 $1,176
$143 $154 ($11)
$32 $3 $29
$111 $151 ($40)



FINANCIAL INFORMATION
WARREN-BOYNTON STATE BANK

FOR YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024



WARREN-BOYNTON STATE BANK

New Berlin, lllinois

Comparative Statement

($000 omitted)

ASSETS: 12/31/2024 12/31/2023 Net Change

Cash and due from Banks $2,999 $3,491 ($492)
U.S. Agency Securities $20,217 $20,563 ($346)
Municipal Securities $28,471 $30,205 ($1,734)
Corporate Bonds $0 $0 $0

FHLB/Title Co Stock $1,334 $1,337 ($3)
Net Loans $194,251 $190,188 $4,063

Federal Funds Sold $1,543 $1,674 ($131)
Bank Premises $1,742 $1,735 $7

Other assets ($279) $244 ($523)
TOTAL ASSETS $250,278 $249,437 $841

LIABILITIES

Demand Deposits $37,495 $39,092 ($1,597)
Time & Savings $179,859 $173,255 $6,604
TOTAL DEPOSITS $217,354 $212,347 $5,007

Other Liabilities $8,240 $13,003 ($4,763)
TOTAL LIABILITIES $225,594 $225,350 $244
Equity Capital $24,684 $24,087 $597
TOTAL LIABILITIES & CAPITAL $250,278 $249,437 $841



WARREN-BOYNTON STATE BANK
New Berlin, lllinois
Comparative Statement

($000 omitted)

INCOME 12/31/2024  12/31/2023 Net Change
Interest & Fees on Loans & Leases $10,864 $9,516 $1,348
Interest on Federal Funds $170 $219 ($49)
Interest on Securities $1,236 $1,207 $29
Service Charge on Deposits $310 $292 $18
Other Income $285 $335 ($50)
TOTAL INCOME $12,865 $11,569 $1,296
EXPENSES
Officer & Employee Salary & Benefits $3,876 $3,506 $370
Interest on Deposits $3,915 $3,102 $813
Occupancy Expenses $916 $857 $59
Loan Loss Provision $135 $134 $1
Other Expenses $1,248 $1,192 $56
TOTAL $10,090 $8,791 $1,299
NET INCOME BEFORE TAXES $2,775 $2,778 ($3)
Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Securities/Assets $0 $0 $0
Adjusted Taxable Income $2,775 $2,778 ($3)
Income Tax ($445) $655 ($1,100)
Adjusted Net Income $3,220 $2,123 $1,097
Dividends to WB Bancorp, Inc.* $800 $879 (%379)
NET INCREASE IN UNDIVIDED PROFITS $2,420 $1,244 $1,176

Charge Offs $143 $154 ($11)

Recoveries $32 $3 $29

Net Charge Offs $111 $151 ($40)



Warren-Boynton State Bank - FDIC Certificate Number: 11674

Consolidated Report of Income
For the period January 1, 2025 — March 31, 2025

Schedule RI—Income Statement

Doilar Amounts in Thousands

Submitted to CDR on 04/11/2025 at 02:51 PM
FFIEC 051

Page 5 of 63

RI-1

1. Interestincome:
a. Interest and fee income on loans:
(1) Loans secured by real estate:
(a) Loans secured by 1-4 family residential PrOPEITiES.....cccvvrirreriiieiir i s ees s sreserase seresseseseressessssssssosssaes
(b) All 0ther [0aNns SECUred DY 1Al @STALE..uvviiviice ittt et e ettt et s s b sa ot sb e es st e st et sasmnsbans
(2) Commercial and industrial loans
(3) Loans to individuals for household, family, and other personal expenditures:
(a) Credit cards
(b) Other (includes revolving credit plans other than credit cards, automobile loans, and
OthET CONSUMET JOBNS) v iviinriiiiiiniris et icrir e rrt e s ses st st stseesaeereesrsaschesnneresaesbe sbestesse sbssesseterestesaaaes st sanrassrearanss
{4) Not applicable
(5) AL OhET T0ANS (1).iriiirueecircireirritiicirineseerereirasi e s es i tor e sr st sre sttt es s sbe et s eenteestsetasanennsrentaneenenseesasetensansnerasseseenensenras
(6) Total interest and fee income on loans (sum of items 1.a.(1)(a) through 1.a.(5))...
b. Income from 1ease fiNAanCING reCEIVADIES......ccvu et er e ca s bsrsr e e steb s er st oss e reenteseeneenamameneree
. interest income on balances due from depository INSHEULIONS {2)..iviviiviiiiriieieieree et r et cr s eeraevssnees
d. Interest and dividend income on securities:
(1) U.S. Treasury securities and U.S. Government agency obligations
(excluding MOrtgage-backed SECUIMIRS)...c.vu i eererese e st s b aressassesrssesescsmssssssesin e srarenenssenrssorenens
{2) MOrtgage-Dacked SECUIHIES. c.uuieicreireirnrrtrr et st e e e b s b s ees et st e s beesss st ettt as e et aeeb et absbenaras s st saenas
(3) All other securities {includes securities issued by states and political
SUDTIVISIONS IN THE ULS.) ettt et e b tes et b e s e eamas st sesassnmeateesoneenaentenees seseereeesasneneas
e. Not applicable
f. Interest income on federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell.......ccceevimverirerersnnns
B Othar INTRIrESTINCOME..i ittt sttt et e e be b e s e s e re e e bt bas s 4 bt aseessessasanssaneassenraesentesaresereseren
h. Total interest income (Sum of iteMS 1.8.(6) TNTOUBR LB} vv e it et sttt et s ste b n e sresaene
2. Interest expense:
a. Interest on deposits:
(1) Transaction accounts (interest-bearing demand deposits, NOW accounts, ATS accounts,
and telephone and preauthorized transfer CCOUNTS) ..o e sttt sar et bs e stssane
(2) Nontransaction accounts:
(2) Savings deposits (INCIIAES IMIVIDAS) ... . ciriirereiineecaretereses e sre st sne e ertsssassaesbosssssrescreessrensersssesesesstosranessrestons
(D) Time depoSsits OF $250,000 OF 1055 ....cuuiuieirreesreetieeteseeeirsses e rossesssssessastas sessseees et et esssessnsssescassonsens stenecssseneossosson
(c) Time deposits of MOre than $250,000......c.cuetaiameremreniereamrrsaresisssescosscsssasesess sesesssesasssasans sasemessassssrarseseancn
b. Expense of federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase..
c. Other interest expense
d. Not applicable
e. Total interest expense (sum of items 2.a through 2.c)

O

RIAD

4435

Amount

986
4436 892
4012 572

4010

2,699

4065

29

B488 27
B489 85
4020 125
4518 20

0093 143
HKO3 484
HK04 286
.| 4180 0

3. Net interest income (item 1.0 MINUS 2.8} vt iicrcniciiien v ot sinees s sae s e reseeresaossereseas

4, Provisions for Credit 10SSES (3 vt isr e sbe s sassrs e e sresre st aas e e st seseeneers

1 includes interest and fee income on "Loans to depository institutions and acceptances of other banks," "Loans to finance agricultural

production and other loans to farmers," "Obligations (other than securities and leases) of states and political subdivisions in the U.S.,"

and "Loans to nondepository financial institutions and other loans."
2 Includes interest income on time certificates of deposit not held for trading.
3 Institutions should report in item 4 the provisions for credit losses on all financial assets and off-balance-sheet credit exposures.

Reporting Period: March 31, 2025

April 11,2025 2:51PM
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Schedule RI—Continued Page 6 of 63

RI-2

Year-to-date
Amount

Dollar Amounts in Thousands

5. Noninterest income:
a. Income from fIAUCIBNY BCHVITIES {1)..oviiriiiiiineireeinneinncrrreer st rbss e s sarestessars s sresaassasssssbobess st sr stenessebssesrsrosssnsessans
b. Service charges on deposit accounts.
¢. Not applicable
d. Income from securities-related and insurance activities:
(1) Fees and commissions from securities brokerage, investment banking, advisory,
AN UNARIWITHING ACHVITIES. ..t rvrieriercreerieiiceririir e tetsr st aes e aebasseesssrasssesseb et sessasaessessnseresssnnsvsss sanernssssnniaseasannn
(2) Income from insurance activities (2)
e. Not applicable
F NEE SBIVICING RS, cuotiiteuiitiri ettt e see v ine e r s eb e bes et st ess sees e aas s ebbebe e v ebersaab ek st essabaseresss sessesroe senssasabentasere sraserares
g. and h. Not applicable
Net gains (1055e5) 0N 52185 OF 108NS ANU IEASES.....iviiciciriiri ittt et s sa sess s barer e ebesrebestssanteresbsen 5416 15 §5.i.
Net gains {losses) on sales of other real estate owned 5415 015,
. Net gains {losses) on sales of other assets (3) B496 1|5k
|. Other noninterest income*
m. Total noninterest income (sum of items 5.a through 5.1)...........
6. a. Realized gains (losses) on held-to-maturity securities
b. Realized gains (losses) on available-for-sale debt seCUIties.....ovivvere i
7. Noninterest expense:

—

=~

2. Salaries and eMPIOYEE DeNefIES. ... eriree e rtere e ettt e ar e er e e e et et b e et s e s eebenr e benennens
b. Expenses of premises and fixed assets (net of rental income)
{excluding salaries and employee benefits and mortgage interest) .| 4217 128 |7.b.
¢. (1) Goodwill impairment losses €216 07.c1.
(2) Amortization expense and impairment losses for other intangible assets €232 0}7.c2.
d. Other NoNINTETest EXPENSE™ ... et ie e e e e e e e s s rrees e cas . | 4092 421 17.d.
e. Total noninterest expense (sum of items 7.2 through 7.d).....cccce et [ 4093 | 1,540

8. a. Income (loss) before change in net unrealized holding gains {losses) on equity
securities not held for trading, applicable income taxes, and discontinued

operations (item 3 plus or minus items 4, 5.m, 6.3, 6.b, and 7.€}....ccceievv v e [ HT69| 821
b. Change in net unrealized holding gains (losses) on equity securities

NOt NEIH fOr TrAdING {4).veeevieeriiiirmrie e re et crrabe s et e te s stesaesaestesresessrsans stnstesrevasaresrens | r70] 0
¢. Income {loss) before applicable income taxes and discontinued

operations {(sum of items 8.a and 8.b)......cececvvrrererrinnns . . ] 4301 821

9. Applicable income taxes (on item 8.¢)..c.ccocvcrvvveniinnnnnne. 4302 12
10. Income (loss) before discontinued operations (item 8.c minus item 4300 809
11. Discontinued operations, net of applicable income taxes*
12. Net income (loss) attributable to bank and noncontrolling {minority)
interests (SUM OF FEMS 10 BNE 11)...uiveiivsereireeessesesesssesesesssceseresseesseescesesesseersesssssossessessansesessens Veioa] 809 |
13, LESS: Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling (minority) interests
(if net income, report as a positive value; if net loss, report as a negative
value)....
14. Net income (loss) attributable to bank (item 12 minus item 13

G103 0}
4340 809 |

* Describe on Schedule RI-E - Explanations

1 For banks required to complete Schedule RC-T, items 14 through 22, income from fiduciary activities reported in Schedule RI, item 5.a, must equal
the amount reported in Schedule RC-T, item 22.

2 Includes underwriting income from insurance and reinsurance activities.

3 Exclude net gains {losses) on sales of trading assets and held-to-maturity and available-for-sale debt securities.

4 item 8.b is to be completed by ali institutions. See the instructions for this item and the Glossary entry for "Securities Activities" for further detail on
accounting for investments in equity securities.

Reporting Period: March 31, 2025 April 11,2025 2:51 PM



Warren-Boynton State Bank - FDIC Certificate Number: 11674 Submitted to CDR on 04/11/2025 at 02:51 PM
FFIEC 051

Schedule RI—Continued bage 7 of 63

RI-3

Memoranda

Year-to-date
Dollar Amounts in Thousands Amount

1. and 2. Not applicable
3. Income on tax-exempt loans and leases to states and political subdivisions in the U.S. ~
(included in Schedule RE, IMS 1.3 NG 1.0)..vii i vt et ssesereetss s e sresistes st sr s sesestoressasssrssssnosessssessersasernns
4. Income on tax-exempt securities issued by states and political subdivisions in the U.S.

(included in Schedule RI, item 1.d.(3))
5. Number of full-time equivalent employees at end of current period Number
(round to the nearest whole number)

Memorandum item 6 is to be completed by:"

s banks with $300 million or more in total assets, and

*  banks with less than $300 million in total assets that have loans to finance agricultural production
and other loans to farmers (Schedule RC-C, Part I, item 3) exceeding 5 percent of total loans.

6. Interest and fee income on loans to finance agricultural production and other loans to farmers RIAD Amount
(included TR SChedUIe RI, M L.a3.{5)) . virtcerimiirririenscrreeseriisein s setbebser et stesmeesesssnsssseosesssrsss stesnesensessnsersstssesessmsessnsnns 4024 146 [M.6.
7. If the reporting institution has applied pushdown accounting this calendar year, report the date RIAD Date
of the institution's acquISIION (SEE INSIIUCHIONS) (2).ciirieriiiiie ireire et ietiee et esr e e ss e ve s e essve s eetsserersesseeneessseesesseneeansesannes 9106 00000000 iMm.7.

8. through 10. Not applicable ,,
11. Does the reporting bank have a Subchapter S election in effect for federal income tax purposes RIAD YES /NO
O ThE CUTTENT TAX YEAIZ.uitiriitiiiceticietcstireaestss st s ersestssateseeseetonessersstesssnesaessaserersetiatasessse stanesbesersenessetsntat besersonssenterarsen AS530 YES M.11.

12. through 14. Not applicable

Memorandum item 15 is to be completed annually in the December report only by institutions with
S1 billion or more in total assets’ that answered “Yes” to Schedule RC-E, Memorandum item 5.

15. Components of service charges on deposit accounts

(sum of Memorandum items 15.athrough 15.d must equal Schedule Rl, item 5.b):

a. Consumer overdraft-related service charges levied on those transaction account and
nontransaction savings account deposit products intended primarily for individuals for RIAD Amount
personal, RoUSEhOI, OF TAMIY USE ... it eeecest et ets sttt st steeer e st e ebssareaasaessnssrssrntaneseresresnses

b. Consumer account periodic maintenance charges levied on those transaction account
and nontransaction savings account deposit products intended primarily for individuals
for personal, hoUSEhOId, OF fAMIIY USE.....cccicieiiiiiiirrecre st se et ceee st et evssees b essssae s st ere s s esseberses st e srnans w M.15.b.

¢. Consumer customer automated teller machine (ATM) fees levied on those transaction
account and nontransaction savings account deposit products intended primarily for
individuals for personal, household, OF FAMIIY USE......c.ce i iceee e resences v et sse s ten et eseesvees s resevesaessaressen M.15.c.

d. All other service charges on dePOSIt ACCOUNTS.....cvvrriieiireiieriiererirvreercorssrescriesesressessereasestesnasssrnssnaresnnessereassrsssssanse HO35 NR|M.15.d.

NR{M.15.a.

1 The asset-size tests and the 5 percent of total loans test are based on the total assets and total loans reported on the
June 30, 2024, Report of Condition.
2 Report the date in YYYYMMODD format. For example, a bank acquired on March 1, 2025 would report 20250301.

Reporting Period: March 31, 2025 Aprit 11,2025 2:51 PM
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Schedule RI-A—Changes in Bank Equity Capital Page 8 of 63

Ri-4

Dollar Amounts in Thousands | RIAD Amount
1. Total bank equity capital most recently reported for the December 31, 2024, Reports of Condition ,

and Income (i.e., after adjustments from amended Reports Of INCOME) .. .o cvuiiveriirteiereccrsereeeresseenseneresaesesseesssaerenes
2. Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles and corrections of material accounting

BTTOES ™ ettt et et b st et s ts et et e b seb e sEee s s e b e aes et banee bt ek e ant e 4 sheAereranR e bR b s Rt et atnE st e ReS SRR R et er Ao s bt eneenreaeneeaeteaeren
3. Balance end of previous calendar year as restated (SUM 0F IteMS 1 aNd 2).iviveiiveiiierirein e seress s esressere e ensesssenns
. Netincome (loss) attributable to bank (must equal Schedule RI, item 14)
. Sale, conversion, acquisition, or retirement of capital stock, net

(excluding treasury stock transactions)..

. Treasury StOCK tranSACHONS, NEL. ittt rerecr e sts et st sres e rer vas b ers sresbseebs st estsbessasessensresre sesrensesesssnestssensassesseon
. Changes inCident tO DUSINESS COMBINATIONS, NBL.....vviiriiee it ets st eeeereaee vseatetesereestanssseeteranesereenssessteenesn
. LESS: Cash dividends declared on preferred SEOCK......cv i eseser e see e ereber st sas et er b s resstesessenstssoreress
. LESS: Cash dividends declared 0n COMMON STOCK.......cvuiiriiriecrieieeetecerain e rerstsantese s ts s s e srssssnassrsseserssessssssoneseresssne
10. Other comprehensive income (1)
11. Other transactions with stockholders (including a parent holding company)*

{notincluded in items 5, 6, 8, or 9 above)....
12. Total bank equity capital end of current period (sum of items 3 through 11)

(must equal SCREUIR RC, JTBM 27.8)..cccoveurriiciiieieiirieeem st etesivesscosssaresas et eots st sbenetosencaseserasenressantreseeatasaesesnenereacn

U

WO

* Describe on Schedule RI-E —Explanations.
1 Includes, but is not limited to, changes in net unrealized holding gains (losses) on available-for-sale debt securities, changes in accumulated net gains
(losses) on cash flow hedges, and pension and other postretirement plan-related changes other than net periodic benefit cost.

Reporting Period: March 31, 2025 April 11,2025 2:51PM
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Schedule RI-B—Charge-offs and Recoveries on Loans and Leases Page 9 of 63
and Changes in Allowances for Credit Losses RS
Part I. Charge-offs and Recoveries on Loans and Leases
Part | includes charge-offs and recoveries through (Column A) (Column B)
the allocated transfer risk reserve. Charge-offs! Recoveries

Calendar year-to-date
Amount

Dollar Amounts in Thousands

1. Loans secured by real estate:
a. Construction, land development, and other land loans:
(1) 1-4 family residential CONSEIUCTION [0BNS..i.ivi v cererer et erescrr s ee et sre e e
(2) Other construction loans and all land development and other :
BANG JOANS. ...t et e et e e bbb r bbb st be bt enreras
b. Secured by farmIand ... e s et st ransenane
c. Secured by 1-4 family residential properties:
(1) Revolving, open-end loans secured by 1-4 family residential
properties and extended under liN@s Of Credito......civviiviirieic e eersenees
(2) Closed-end loans secured by 1-4 family residential properties:
(@) SECUEA BY ISt HHBIMS. couceeviecrseveere v e e st e et b e saeereaeeseesaesaesaeecobeseeneens
(b) Secured Dy JUNIOT IBNS. ...ciivreiviieneiecrescrcerrenr s s bin st s e s eessnsstesrvessersresss seorsssenes
d. Secured by multifamily (5 or more) residential PropPerties.....c..cvvcrvcrivciennere e
e. Secured by nonfarm nonresidential properties:
(1) Loans secured by owner-occupied nonfarm nonresidential properties........ocouevnrvernicvenes

l.c.2.a.
1.c.2.b.

le.l.

{2) Loans secured by other nonfarm nonresidential properties.......ccovuveveeiverenevesreeneveneeas le?2.
2. and 3. Not applicable
4. Commercial and INAUSTIAl I0BNS...c.cuiiiiiii i e e e e st e 4.

5. Loans to individuals for household, family, and other personal expenditures:
TR O =T 11 o T ¢ T RO TSSOSO TRTRR
b. Automobile loans................ . e
¢. Other {includes revolving credit plans other than credit cards and
OthETr CONSUMET IOBNS).c.uti it veriirii it etreres s e ettt et e b e e ebcsn e st e sssssrEstsesssessavansersesssonntsnn
Not applicable
AL OTREE TOBNS (2} rineeriirieireciiresiee st srrerr s sre st s saesee b e sessees e sresrentesns sresheoressssreserabessestestsenessests
Lease financing reCRIVADIES. ....vvcv it et et sarereeas b e st sreeae e sres
Total (Sum of ItemMS 1 throUBN 8)....cicciii e iircreie vt ee e st eae e s sr e s seereeresnsarnessann e

4644 0

4628 017
4267 0 |8.
4605 1]e.

4266 0
4635

©®~N®

1 include write-downs arising from transfers of loans to a held-for-sale account.

2 Includes charge-offs and recoveries on "Loans to depository institutions and acceptances of other banks," "Loans to finance agricultural produc-
tion and other loans to farmers," "Obligations (other than securities and leases) of states and political subdivisions in the U.S.," and "Loans to non-
depository financial institutions and other loans."

Memoranda
Dollar Amounts in Thousands

{Column A)
Charge-offs’

(Column B)
Recoveries

Calendar year-to-date

1. Loans to finance commercial real estate, construction, and land

development activities (not secured by real estate) included in

Schedule RI-B, Part |, items 4 and 7, 8DOVE.......coiiiiii i rniresttreces e serrestsees e ssene s ssenssasneennes
2. Not applicable

1 include write-downs arising from transfers of loans to a held-for-sale account.

Reporting Period: March 31, 2025

Amount

Amount

Aprit 11,2025 2:51 PM
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Schedule RI-B—Continued Fage 100163
RI-6
Part | - Continued
(Column A) (Column B)
Memoranda - Continued Charge-offs' Recoveries
Calendar year-to-date
Dollar Amounts in Thousands | RIAD Amount RIAD Amount

Memorandum item 3 is to be completed by.?
« banks with $300 million or more in total assets, and
» banks with less than S300 million in total assets that have loans to
finance agricultural production and other loans to farmers
(Schedule RC-C, Part |, item 3) exceeding 5 percent of total loans.
3. Loans to finance agricultural production and other loans to farmers ~ . . i
(included in Schedule RI-B, Part 1, item 7, 8DOVE}...uciveiirirriiiresriitir et sves e ces s easeesrseesins 4655 0 | 4665 0 {M.3.

1 Include write-downs arising from transfers of loans to a held-for-sale account.
2 The $300 million asset-size test and the 5 percent of total loans test are based on the total assets and total loans reported on the
June 30, 2024, Report of Condition.

Part Il. Changes in Allowances for Credit Losses

{Column A) {Column B) (Column C)
Loans and Leases Held-to-Maturity Availabie-for-Sale
Held for Investment Debt Securities Debt Securities

Dollar Amounts in Thousands | RIAD Amount RIAD Amount RIAD Amount
1. Balance most recently reported for the December 31, 2024, Reports
of Condition and Income (i.e., after adjustments from amended

REPOIS OF INCOMEB ) criireiiveriterinecerie i st cn st s se et ereeresvesseerssrresnssssresesresnes B522 1,705 | JH88 0 | JHs4 01
2. Recoveries (column A must equal Part |, item 9, column B, above).......... 4605 1 | JH89 0 | JHos | 0 2.
3. LESS: Charge-offs (column A must equal Part |, item 9, column A, . L :

above less Schedule RI-B, Part I, item 4, column A)cevcoccvcvveencconnninins 079 21 | =92 0 ] jHos 0 }3.
4, LESS: Write-downs arising from transfers of financial assets.......c.covecovn. 5523 0] noo 0] yo1 0 {a.
5. Provisions for credit 10555 (1).....ccccrerververrerrrnnreersrsrniesseesssinnanas . | 4230 0 | JH90 0 | JHs6 0 |s.
6. Adjustments™® (see instructions for this schedule) €233 0| JHo1 0] Ho7 0 6.
7. Balance end of current period (sum of items 1, 2, 5, and 6, less

items 3 and 4) (column A must equal Schedule RC, item 4.¢)....c..cccovivunns

* Describe on Schedule RI-E - Explanations.
1 The sum of item 5, columns A through C, plus Schedule RI-B, Part If, Memorandum items S and 7, befow, must equal Schedule RI, item 4.

Memoranda

Amount

Dollar Amounts in Thousands | RIAD
1. to 4. Not applicable 7
5. Provisions for credit losses on other financial assets measured at amortized cost
{NOLINCIUAEA N FEEM B, BBOVE).ccui it iie i ettt ee et e e et et e er et et e s bes st as bt s s eab st e s skt ses st e st st e be st et b s e st aneas
6. Allowance for credit losses on other financial assets measured at amortized cost
(NOTINCIUAR TN LM 7, BDOVE)cciiriiiieceiriiier et str et sbe e sre sttt eae s assreeasabeebesaesbeetesbesesetesaeabsebestasasee seasababesaesateseonean

7. Provisions for credit losses on off-balance-sheet credit exposures....

Reporting Period: March 31, 2025 April 11,2025 2:51 PM
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. . FFIEC 051
Schedule RI-C—Disaggregated Data on the Allowances for Credit Losses Page 11 of 63
RI-7
items 1 through 6 are to be completed semiannually in the June and December reports only by institutions with 1 billion or more
in total ossets.”
(Column A} {Column B)
Amortized Cost Allowance Balance
Dollar Amounts in Thousands Amount Amount

Loans and Leases Held for Investment:
1. Real estate loans:

3. CONSITUCHION I08NS.01iiiriimrireees e cernin s estrre s ca st sares et e sresaeeesaeseesbessente st st e seents st snassssnsnsans 104 NR| y12 NR| 1.a.
b. Commercial real @State [0aNS. .. .cccoiievi it e e e e e erees 105 NR| 113 NR} 1.b.
C. Residential real @State 10N S. ... et e et bbbt sae st en e e e 1J06 NR} )14 NR} 1.c.
2. Commercial I0@NS {2)...cci i et s st bt r e sereseore st e asob e srerebenses et orens 1107 NR] n1s NR]| 2.
3. Credit cards......ocvriveevinevivenervnnan. NR| 3.
A, OTNET CONSUMEBT 10@NS.tiiiiiiiieiieiiiiireatrenteerresreere st ass e eses stnessserasssns stsensssassnstessesssesssesssesnesnseneenn NR]| 4.
5. Unallocated, if any.......ccceevevcrvennn. NRJ 5.
6. Total (sum of items 1.a through 5) (3) NR} 6.

items 7 through 11 are to be completed semiannually in the June and December reports only by institutions with 1 billion or

more in total assets.’

Dollar Amounts in Thousands

Allowance Balance

Held-to-Maturity Securities:
7. Securities issued by states and political subdivisions In the U.S.........cccvivrmiiiieininin e esesresssensnicenes
8. Mortgage-backed securities (MBS) (including CMOs, REMICs, and stripped MBS)........covcruuvremmrmneeissiesnennaisnerenssnns
9. Asset-backed securities and structured financial products.......c.ccoviiniievnienine, e s
10. Other debt securities........c.cccccceneennee.
11. Total {sum of items 7 through 10) (4)

1 The $1 billion asset-size test is based on the total assets reported on the jJune 30, 2024, Report of Condition.

Amount

120 NR|7.
121 NR]s.
1123 NRJ9.
124 NRj10.
325 NR|11.

2 Include all loans and leases not reported as real estate loans, credit cards, or other consumer loans in items 1, 3, or 4 of Schedule RI-C.

3 Item 6, column B, must equal Schedule RC, item 4.c.
4 jtem 11 must equal Schedule RI-B, Part i, item 7, column B,

Reporting Period: March 31, 2025

April 11,2025 2:51 PM
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Schedule RI-E—Explanations Page 12 of 63

RI-8

Schedule RI-E is to be completed each quarter on a calendar year-to-date basis, unless otherwise noted.

Detail all adjustments in Schedule RI-A and RI-B, all discontinued operations in Schedule RI, and all significant items of other
noninterest income and other noninterest expense in Schedule Rl {See instructions for details.)

Year-to-date
Dollar Amounts in Thousands | RIAD Amount

Items 1.a through 1.j and 2.a through 2.p ore to be completed annually on a calendar year-to-date
basis in the December report only.

1. Other noninterest income {from Schedule RI, item 5.1}
Itemize and describe amounts greater than $100,000 that exceed 7% of Schedule R, item 5.1

a. Income and fees from the printing and 5ale 0f CHECKS.....ccocoivimi ettt nes e ver e en e s nerars sbres
b. Earnings on/increase in value of cash surrender value of life insurance..
c. Income and fees from automated teller Machings (ATIVIS) ... veriiee i sereessae e sss e st sr s s bon e reressssnsnsneeras
d. Rent and other income from other real @STate OWNEU.....ccccv it es et sr e rsse st s cosserenssssnssronsosanian
€. 5818 URPOSIE BOX FBNT...ciiiiii st e e e s cr b st bbb et e se st seesabasres stestsssneee sbssbsareeneresresrossasnns
f. Bank card and credit card INTErCENEE FRES......cociiiiiei e e s ere bt s et easste e e ssberesrs e s sesbanesssrearssnnseranean
g- Income and fees from wire transfers not reportable as service charges on deposit 3CCOUNTS....covivirevvveiriennrnveerereenns
TEXT
h. j4461
TEXT
i, 14462
TEXT
j. |a463

2. Other noninterest expense (from Schedule RI, item 7.d)
ltemize and describe amounts greater than $100,000 that exceed 7% of Schedule RI, item 7.d:

3. DAl PrOCESSING EXPENSES .ottt cciiitis i sttt et re e ste et b ests e she s eteesteanbe stestaeee feseesaneareearaotaeerreoRteeater et Rt ehe cebeeatbebtae €017 NRj2.a.
b. AQVETtiSing GNd Marketing EXPENSES. .. vvrieieeiriirretrtie et et r sttt aesbeses st eebeseaerssaret tersensenberserestsessontascosess bersersonas 0497 NR{2.b.
Lo D Tl (o £ £ TP DT O U USSR U OO RPN 4136 NRf2.c.
d. Printing, StatioNery, @Nd SUPPIES. ..ot srrsersectie s e e sr s abees e st bess et seatsssebs st abessebsrasssetobestssensessssensssins €018 NRj2.d.
L o1 T T OO O DT 8403 NR{2.e.
f. Legal fees and expenses... 4141 NR|2f.
g. FDIC deposit insurance assessments 4146 NRJ|2.g.
h. Accounting and auditing expenses F556 NR|2.h.
i. Consulting and advisory expenses F557 NRj2.i.
j- Automated teller machine (ATM) and INtErChANEE BXPENSES. ..ccccoveiirriirerierine st er e e e et esstss et sese b sestensravens F558 NR|z2..
K. TelecommuniCations EXPENSES. .....iiciriirre it rrcr st e ees s e se et eseeesbssrressssaeesbaans . | F559 NRJ2.k.
I. Other real estate owned expenses Y923 NRJ2.1.

m. Insurance expenses {not included in employee expenses, premises and fixed asset expenses,
and Other real £5tate OWNEE EXPEINSES) ... i vrieiicierererirsre st sieseeesiesbeeeerssarsaeesesseesssbeaba sas sessasstsetasaesteenssnecotanssnaresnssrnsssoneen
TEXT
n.j4464
TEXT
0.}4467
TEXT
p.| 4468
3. Discontinued operations and applicable income tax effect (from Schedule RI, item 11)
(itemize and describe each discontinued operation):
TEXT
a. (1) | rr2s
(2) Applicable INCOME 1aX EFfECL.....cii ittt et st et | Frao |
TEXT
b. (1)} FT31
{(2) Applicable income tax effect................. e et st s e s ate s s e bee e b e e ans et araeareesanren nreanen | FT32 |

Reporting Period: March 31, 2025 April 11, 2025 2:51 PM
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FFIEC 051
Page 13 of 63
RI-9

Year-to-date

4. Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles and corrections of material accounting errors
{from Schedule RI-A, item 2) (itemize and describe all such effects):

b.

TEXT
B526

Reclassification of key man life insurance

TEXT
B527

5. Other transactions with stockholders (including a parent holding company)
(from Schedule RI-A, item 11) (itemize and describe all such transactions):

b.

TEXT
4498

Add. div. paid to H.C. shareholders due to S Corp conversion

TEXT

4499

PURCHASE OF MC BANCORP

6. Adjustments to allowances for credit losses (from Schedule RI-B, Part II, item 6)
(itemize and describe all adjustments):

a.

Initial

allowances for credit losses recognized upon the acquisition of purchased

CTEdit-0etEITOraOA @SSETS (1) .iccecriiiiriiiiii i ieirscevre et esersee b e st e ba s b sheesmesrses thesbsestesstsnessresrnesatearsssn soessenersmsnresrees

TEXT
4521

TEXT
4522

7. Other explanations {the space below is provided for the bank to briefly describe, at its option, any
other significant items affecting the Report of Income):

COMIIMEBNES 2.t ettt et bt s ee sb e sa e v te st see st e R e s e sa s 441 abesaesbasns sbensasbesteseesbssbesnsssestasesstestantenb stenssstersensenterensnren

Other explanations (please type or print clearly; 750 character limit):
(TEXT 4769)

1 Institutions should report initial allowances for credit losses recognized upon the acquisition of purchased credit-deteriorated
assets after the adoption of FASB ASC Topic 326.

Reporting Period: March 31, 2025

RIAD

YES / NO

4769

NO 7.
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RC-1

All schedules are to be reported in thousands of dollars. Unless otherwise indicated, report the amount outstanding as of the

last business day of the quarter.

Schedule RC—Balance Sheet

Dollar Amounts in Thousands

Assets
1. Cash and balances due from depository institutions:
a. Noninterest-bearing balances and currency and coin (1).
D, INTerest-DRANING DAIANCES (2). v ci et ete e e st sttt e st sbe e be s b s e be st sheate b e e st seearaaes sbennan
2. Securities:
a. Held-to-maturity securities (from Schedule RC-B, COUMN A} (3] viirierieinirere e er e en s s s eraevens
b. Available-for-sale debt securities (from Schedule RC-B, COIUMN D)uvvvvriirricreeinrcecnis et sreseeseresesra s sersenssssrssnons
¢. Equity securities with readily determinable fair values not held for trading (4).
3. Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell:
8. FRderal fUNAS SO ..o s et et e e b et e e et eae s e anAaen s et srntennereres
b. Securities purchased under agreements to resell (5,6)..
4. Loans and lease financing receivables (from Schedule RC-C):

l.a.
i.h.
1)34 0 ]2.a.
1773 47,257 |2.b
JA22 0J2.c

3. Loans and 18ases helt fOr SAI.......ccciiriiriiiiiiiie e et a e e b e e s scr et s b sae st srenseneassessbenesberente
b. Loans and leases held for INVESIMENT.....ccccccvvervce et B528 192,273 .
c. LESS: Allowance for credit losses on [oans and leases........ccccvevvereesvennee. 3123 1,686 4
d. Loans and leases held for investment, net of allowance (item 4.5 MiNUS 4.C)..ccvii e i e e sere s 8529 190,587 la.d.
LT Lo 1 = 1T O OO OO 3545 0 ]s.
6. Premises and fixed assets (including right-0f-USE SSELS)...v.ivvrririiirriniiei et eie sttt sesr et esreen s veess ere st ssensensanons 2145 1,741 |6
7. Other real estate owned (from SChedule RC-M).i v ee vt se st vs s eseeesaease st sresrssassneescaneensansorson 2150 25 17.
8. Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated COMPANIES......o.veccvrerrnvecericorsreerenverevieseeeee e srrsseseeneens 2130 45 |8.
9. Direct and indirect investments in real @S1ate VENTUIES.........ciiiiei e et vre st srnsrrs e ssa e bt e e s s ns e eseesteees 3656 0 }9.
10. Intangible assets {from Schedule RC-M) 2143 553 l10.
11, Other as5ets (from SChEAUIE RC-F) {B)iruiiiioiiiiiieeeeeee et cte it e st sb st st s s b st s ae e se e st e et cnenta e seesessasnnseneons 2160 4,641 |11.
12. Total assets (SUm of It@MS 1 thTOUBN 11)..cciiiviiiiiiieiieninienie s srcanrenee s seescasssaaesesivnstsresssreeseseatiseerses ssiseesenssssssesesassons
Liabilities
13. Deposits:
a. In domestic offices (sum of totals of columns A and C from SChedule RC-E).....covvvvivveevireienniiiecrinenneriesesssisssscns
(1) Noninterest-bearing (7) 6631 38,872 |
(2) IS DEAIING e cvecvteeuerereer st s reeeeenresecas sttt et eesees e caseaeene st s seeseenseeeee e enenes 6636 187,783 |

b. Not applicable
14. Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase:
a. Federal funds pUrchased (). ... e e e s b e s ses s b sa b er s sb st e e sbebesssaserssnants
b. Securities sold under agreements tO rePUICRASE (D). ciieicriririieercarererierenrcnesinssirrssessessaorenssas sresseresssrssssessesas
35, TradiNg aD TS, oottt sre e et e e b ars et ebeaae et sneneas et et ersennenrsrserens
16. Other borrowed money (includes mortgage indebtedness) (from Schedule RC-M)
17. and 18. Not applicable
19. Subordinated notes and debentUIeS {10).......civveiiiiiiiieer e e reab et sss st ebsesbassasbenbess e snaeesansaranasaanee

1 Includes cash items in process of collection and unposted debits.
2 Includes time certificates of deposit not held for trading.

3 Institutions should report in item 2.2 amounts net of any applicable allowance for credit iosses, and item 2.a should equal Schedule RC-B, item 8,

column A, less Schedule RI-B, Partll, item 7, column B.

4 Item 2.c is to be completed by all institutions. See the instructions for this item and the Glossary entry for "Securities Activities” for further detail

on accounting for investments in equity securities.
5 Includes all securities resale agreements, regardless of maturity.
6 Institutions should report in items 3.b and 11 amounts net of any applicable allowance for credit losses.
7 Includes noninterest-bearing, demand, time, and savings deposits.
8 Report overnight Federal Home Loan Bank advances in Schedule RC, item 16, "Other borrowed money."
9 Includes all securities repurchase agreements, regardless of maturity.
10 Includes limited-life preferred stock and related surplus.

Reporting Period: March 31, 2025

B993 0 |14.2
B995 0 J14.b
3548 0 }15.
3190 7,000 {16
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RC-2

Dollar Amounts in Thousands JRCON

Liabilities—continued
20. Other liabilities (from SChEAUIE RC-G)...ccvcviiierrerierirr s sriee e eet st eeae et ebaessetaseseseessesrese st ssesse st snscannsssasenssassesanssn

Amount

21. Total liabilities {Sum of items 13 throUBR 20)........cccvievirirrnnreniie e inese bt srseessrat s sterenseressseestssersssnsessereeses
22. Not applicable

2948

235,113 |21.

Equity Capital
Bank Equity Capital
23. Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus.. 3838 0 23.
24. Common stock 3230 414 |24.
25. Surplus (excludes all surplus related to preferred stock) 3839 8,090 |25.
26. 3. Retained @arnings.....cccovccreeviinieneerecieirensnnervecenneninns 3632 19,513 |26.a
b. Accumulated other comprehensive INCOME [L)..cuivi it ererrie i rre et se s e senae e crrnascenstanseseaneraseserssnsenssansoss B530 (3,979})126.b.
¢. Other equity capitai components (2) A130 0 j26.c.
27. a. Total bank equity capital (sum of items 23 through 26.c)... 3210 24,038 [27.a.
b. Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated SUbSIAIATIES. ...c..ouvevievieeeeer e e e e 3000 0 {27.b.
28. Total equity capital (sum of items 27.a and 27.b) G105 24,038 |28.
29. Total liabilities and equity capital (sum of items 21 and 28) 3300 259,151 |29.
Memoranda
To be reported with the March Report of Condition.
1. Indicate in the box at the right the number of the statement below that best describes the
most comprehensive level of auditing work performed for the bank by independent external RCON Number
auditors as of any date dUMNG 2024..........cooviieiiriienirn s seeteres e sane e sresae sterasnaeseeesraesateereanssbearesenssecen stestesssecesessenen 6724 4im.1
1a = An integrated audit of the reporting institution's financial state- 3 = This number is not to be used
ments and its internal control over financial reporting conducted 4 = Directors' examination of the bank conducted in accordance
in accordance with the standards of the American institute of with generally accepted auditing standards by a certified
Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) or the Public Company public accounting firm (may be required by state-chartering
Accounting Oversight Board {PCAOB) by an independent public authority)
accountant that submits a report on the institution S = Directors' examination of the bank performed by other external
1b = An audit of the reporting institution’s financial statements only auditors (may be required by state-chartering authority)
conducted in accordance with the auditing standards of the 6 = Review of the bank's financial statements by external
AICPA or the PCAOB by an independent public accountant that auditors
submits a report on the institution 7 = Compilation of the bank's financial statements by external
2a = An integrated audit of the reporting institution's parent holding auditors
company's consolidated financial statements and its internal con- 8 = Other audit procedures (excluding tax preparation work)
trol over financial reporting conducted in accordance with the 9 = No external audit work
standards of the AICPA or the PCAOB by an independent public
accountant that submits a report on the consolidated hoiding
company {but not on the institution separately)
2b = An audit of the reporting institution's parent holding com-
pany's consolidated financial statements only conducted in
accordance with the auditing standards of the AICPA or the
PCAOB by an independent public accountant that submits
a report on the consolidated holding company (but not on
the institution separately)
To be reported with the March Report of Condition. RCON Date
2. Bank's fiscal year-end date {report the date in MMDD format)........cccovvvincimonmimin o e 8678 12/31jm.2.

1 Includes, but is not limited to, net unrealized holding gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities, accumulated net gains {losses) on cash flow

hedges, and accumulated defined benefit pension and other postretirement plan adjustments.
2 includes treasury stock and unearned Employee Stock Ownership Plan shares.

Reporting Period: March 31, 2025
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Schedule RC-N—Past Due and Nonaccrual Loans, Leases, and Other Assets Poge 34 of 63
RC-21
{Column A) {Column B) {Column C)
Past due Past due 90 Nonaccrual
30 through 89 days or more
days and still and still
accruing accruing
Dollar Amounts in Thousands Armount Amount Amount

1. Loans secured by real estate:
a. Construction, land development, and other
land loans:
(1) 1-4 family residential conStruction [0aNS......c.cveimveevrenrevsrersrrenenns
(2) Other construction loans and all land
development and other land 10ans.....cc.ooovvvciiiieicnncieninne e,

b. Secured by farmland.......ccccccvirrii e
¢. Secured by 1-4 family residential properties: -
{1) Revolving, open-end loans secured by
1-4 family residential properties and

extended under lines of credit....
(2) Closed-end loans secured by 1-4 family

residential properties:

(a)Secured by first lens...c.uvivveir e e

{b) Secured by JURIOT IRNS.....ccevviiiicciinie et seees e st erre e ens

d. Secured by multifamily (5 or more) residential

PIOPEIEIES. e e vcrisirrenirerreesreree i eeren e st eesesseeessesesaeesrnnrseneaesnte vt tesinnense

e. Secured by nonfarm nonresidential properties:
(1) Loans secured by owner-occupied

nonfarm nonresidential properties........c i rescesenerenne

(2) Loans secured by other nonfarm

nonresidential properties......

2. Loans to depository institutions and

acceptances of Other Banks.......cvrvvcrennrn e st e

3. Not applicable

. Commercial and industrial 10ans......ccovciiricin e,

5. Loans to individuals for household, family, and

other personal expenditures:
3. Credit Cards. ..ot b s

F-

b. Automobile loans..........
¢. Other {includes revolving credit plans other
than credit cards and other consumer loans)

. Not applicable .
. AH OTNEEIOBNS {L)riii ettt v v e e e s et s st s e ere e sanren 5459 77 | 5460

kas]  olwrr]  oles]  ofsc

. Lease financing receivables

W N;

. Total loans and leases {(sum of items 1 through 8)
10. Debt securities and other assets {exclude other
real estate owned and other repossessed assets)

5461 017
1226 0| 1227 1228 0]s
1406 761 | 1407 1403 495 {9

1 Includes past due and nonaccrual “Loans to finance agricultural production and other loans to farmers,” “Obligations (other than securities and leases)

of states and political subdivisions in the U.S.,” and “Loans to nondepository financial institutions and other loans.”

Reporting Period: March 31, 2025
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Schedule RC-N—Continued Fage 35 of 63
RC-22
Amounts reported by loan and lease category in Schedule RC-N, items 1 through 8, include guaranteed and unguaranteed portions
of past due and nonaccrual loans and leases. Report in items 11 and 12 below certain guaranteed loans and leases that have already
been included in the amounts reported in items 1 through 8.
{Column A) {Column B) (Column C}
Past due Past due 90 Nonaccrual
30 through 89 days or more
days and still and still
accruing accruing
Dollar Amounts in Thousands Amount Amount

11. Loans and leases reported in items 1 through
8 above that are wholly or partially guaranteed
by the U.S. Government, excluding loans and
leases covered by loss-sharing agreements
WIth the FDIC ..ottt steereta e sae st e e s cavanesteeae
a. Guaranteed portion of loans and leases
included in item 11 above, excluding
rebooked "GNMA [0ans".......ccccoimimmincccnine st
b. Rebooked "GNMA loans" that have been
repurchased or are eligible for repurchase
included in item 11 @BOVe.....cccevivivcricrirctrrrecr s e e
Portion of covered loans and leases reported in
item 9 above that is protected by FDIC loss-
sharing agreements

12.

Memoranda {Column A) {Column B) {Column C)
Past due Past due 90 Nonaccrual
30 through 89 days or more
days and still and still
accruing accruing
Dollar Amounts in Thousands Amount Amount

Memorandum items 1.a.(1) through 1.f.(5) are to be
completed semiannually in the June and December
reports only. Memorandum item 1.g is to be
completed quarterly.

1. Loan modifications to borrowers experiencing
financial difficulty included in Schedule RC-N,
items 1 through 7, above (and not reported in
Schedule RC-C, Part I, Memorandum item 1):
a. Construction, land development, and
other land loans:
(1) 1-4 family residential CONStruUCtion I0aNS....c.ccceverecvevinnerenresenans
{2) Other construction loans and ali land
development and other 1and 10ans........cocevernnecnnnvn e,
b. Loans secured by 1-4 family residential
PrOPEIHES.cvvv it et r s n e ce st srnae s sre eeneaesernenan
c. Secured by multifamily (5 or more)
residential Properties. . et e
d. Secured by nonfarm nonresidential
properties:
(1) Loans secured by owner-occupied
nonfarm nonresidential properties.....ccvecverrvin e nnsreree i
(2) Loans secured by other nonfarm

NR
NR

K119
K259

NR

M.1.d.2.
M.l.e.

NR
NR

K118
K258

K117
K257

nonresidential Properties.......cccv v e e e
e. Commercial and industrial [0ans.....c.civ e e

NR

Reporting Period: March 31, 2025 April 11,2025 2:51 PM
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Schedule RC-N—Continued Page 35053
RC-23
Memoranda—Continued (Column A) (Column B) (Column C)
Past due Past due 90 Nonaccrual
30 through 89 days or more
days and still and still
accruing accruing
Dollar Amounts in Thousands Amount Amount Amount

1.f. All other loans (include loans to individuals
for household, family, and other personal
EXPENAITUIES)..eeisriiriirerrsiis s reesresesretesesessssesessssssrererseesreessorensenssnesnssin

Itemize loan categories included in Memo-
randum item 1.f, above that exceed 10 per-
cent of total loan modifications to borrowers
experiencing financial difficulty that are post
due 30 days or more or in nonaccrual status
(sum of Memorandum items 1.a through 1.e
plus 1.f, columns A through C):

(1) Loans secured by farmland.........ccccccvvv v
(2) and (3) Not applicable
(4) Loans to individuals for household, family,
and other personal expenditures:
{3) Credit Cards. e e st e s sr e e e reen
{b) Automobile loans
(c) Other (includes revolving credit plans
other than credit cards and other
CONSUMET [OBNS).civviiiiiiiiriteie et s eerss e st ees st e seaesrserrasaeas

Memorandum item 1.£.5. is to be completed by:’
» Banks with 5300 million or more in total assets
= Banks with less than $300 million in total
assets that have loans to finance
ogricuitural production and other loans to
farmers (Schedule RC-C, Part |, item 3)
exceeding 5 percent of total loans

(5) Loans to finance agricultural pro-
duction and other [0ans to farmers......ccciv e icee e
g. Total loan modifications to borrowers
experiencing financial difficulty included
in Schedule RC-N, items 1 through 7,
above (sum of Memorandum items
1.23.(1) throUgh L) (2] e
2. Loans to finance commercial real estate,
construction, and land development activities
(not secured by real estate) included in
Schedule RC-N, items 4 and 7, aBOVE...c.ceviieieivieiee e s esre e
3. Not applicable

1 The $300 million asset-size test and the five percent of total loans test are based on the total assets and total loans reported on the
June 30, 2024, Report of Condition.
2 Exclude amounts reported in Memorandum items 1.f.(1) through 1.f.(5) when calculating the total in Memorandum item 1.g.

Reporting Period: March 31, 2025 April 11,2025 2:51 PM
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RC-24
{Column A} {Column B) (Column C)
Past due Past due 90 Nonaccrual
30 through 89 days or more
days and stili and still
accruing accrying

Dollar Amounts in Thousands

Memorandum item 4 is to be completed by:!
e banks with $300 million or more in total assets
* banks with less than $300 million in total

assets that have loans to finance agricultural

production and other loans to farmers

{Schedule RC-C, Part |, item 3) exceeding

5 percent of total loans:

4. Loans to finance agricultural production and
other loans to farmers {included in Schedule
RC-N, item 7, above)

Memorandum item 5 is to be completed semiannually
in the June and December reports only.

S. Loans and leases held for sale {(included in

Schedule RC-N, items 1 through 8, above).......cccvcveceeeivvrecnece i

Amount

Amount

s 770w olws] 0]

6. Not applicable

Memorandum items 7 and 8 are to be completed semiannually in the June and December reports only.

7. Additions to nonaccrual assets during the previous SiX MONTHS. ... s e sscssreassesesssstrsessssssssseses

8. Nonaccrual assets sold during the previous six months

RCON Amount
C410 NR|M.7.
€411 NRim.8.
{Column A) (Column B) (Column C)
Past due Past due 90 Nonaccrual
30 through 89 days or more
days and still and still
accruing accruing

Dollar Amounts in Thousands
9. Loans to nondepository financial institutions
included in Schedule RC-N, IteM 7...cccoviiriviiiinnienn e eccnree e sree e

Amount

Amount

1 The $300 million asset-size test and the 5 percent of total loans test are based on the total assets and total loans reported on the

june 30, 2024, Report of Condition.

Reporting Period: March 31, 2025
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Warren-Boynton State Bank

5 COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT ACT POLICY

DATE APPROVED BY BOARD April 21, 2025

5.1 PURPOSE

The Community Reinvestment Act of 1977 ("CRA") and the federal banking regulators’ CRA Regulations were
enacted to help ensure that banks meet the credit needs of their communities. The Regulations provide
guidance with regard to the methods regulators will use in assessing Warren-Boynton's CRA performance. Each
bank must delineate one or more "assessment areas" within which the regulators will evaluate Warren-
Boynton's record of helping to meet the credit needs of its community. Each bank must also make available to
the public certain CRA related information. CRA encourages lenders to establish dialogues with local community
members regarding their credit needs and to make efforts, within sound credit practices, to help meet those
needs. The Board of Directors recognizes its responsibility to establish and implement policies and procedures
to achieve compliance with the requirements of the CRA and to serve the community's credit needs, including
the needs of low and moderate income areas.

5.2 STATEMENT

The Board of Directors and senior management will take an active role in assuring overall compliance with the
CRA. The Board of Directors of Warren-Boynton will review and approve Warren-Boynton's CRA Policy,
including the reasonabieness of the delineated assessment area, at least annually and after each material
change. All CRA-related discussions are to be documented in minutes of the Board of Directors' meetings.
Further, the Board of Directors will review periodic self-assessments of Warren-Boynton's CRA compliance
efforts. Warren-Boynton will make reasonable efforts to ascertain the credit needs of the community and to
develop and market products and services to meet those needs. All of Warren-Boynton's directors, officers and
employees are encouraged to be familiar with Warren-Boynton's CRA goals and responsibilities. It is Warren-
Boynton's policy to comply with the standards imposed by CRA and related regulations by making safe and
sound loans and investments and providing safe and sound services on which Warren-Boynton expects to make
a profit. Warren-Boynton will develop and apply flexible underwriting standards for loans that benefit low or
moderate income geographies or individuals which are consistent with safe and sound banking practices.

5.3 CRA COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Kevin Hermes, V.P., is designated as the CRA Compliance Officer, the person responsible for coordinating,
documenting, and monitoring Warren-Boynton State Bank's CRA program. Warren-Boynton State Bank's Board
of Directors recognizes that CRA regulations are subject to change and that certain CRA regulations may or
may not be effective as to Warren-Boynton State Bank, or may become effective as to Warren-Boynton State
Bank on different dates, depending on certain factors and alternative forms of CRA compliance which are
available to Warren-Boynton State Bank under applicable regulations. The Board of Directors, with the guidance
and assistance of the Compliance Officer, intends to ensure that Warren-Boynton State Bank complies with
such regulations in a proper and timely manner. Warren-Boynton State Bank may appoint a CRA Compliance
Committee to monitor CRA compliance. If such a committee is appointed, the members will be listed on a
document entitled Exhibit "A", which will be attached hereto and made a part of this Policy.

The CRA Compliance Officer's responsibilities will include making periodic reports to the Board of Directors
concerning Warren-Boynton State Bank's CRA efforts, performance, and, if appropriate, areas for improvement.

Warren-Boynton State Bank -1- Effective: April 03, 2025



Warren-Boynton State Bank

5.4 ASSESSMENT AREA
Warren-Boynton's designated assessment area shall be as described in an attached exhibit.
5.5 CRA NOTICE

Warren-Boynton will provide in the lobby of its main office and each of its branches a public CRA Notice which
conforms in form and substance with the applicable regulatory requirements.

5.6 CRA PUBLIC FILE

Warren-Boynton will maintain a public file, in which it will assemble all information and documents required by
then effective regulations applicable to Warren-Boynton. Upon request, Warren-Boynton will provide copies of
the information in its public file to any persons requesting such information. Such information will be provided in
paper or other form acceptable to the person making the request. If Warren-Boynton charges fees for such
service, the fees will be reasonable and will not exceed copying and mailing costs (if applicable). The
information contained in Warren-Boynton's public file will be made available at Warren-Boynton's main office
and, if Warren-Boynton is an interstate bank, at one branch office in each state. Warren-Boynton will make
available at each of its branches: (i) a copy of the public section of its most recent CRA Performance Evaluation
and a list of services provided by the branch; and (ii) within five calendar days of a request, all the information in
the public file relating to the assessment area in which the branch is located. Warren-Boynton will update its
public file in order to ensure that the information contained therein will be current as of April 1 of each year.

5.7 DATA COLLECTION, REPORTING AND DISCLOSURE

Warren-Boynton will assemble, collect and maintain such CRA related information as may be required by
applicable regulations in form and substance which are fully compliant with such regulations, including in a
machine readable format as prescribed by the regulators.

5.8 SOCIAL MEDIA GUIDANCE

On December 11, 2013, the FFIEC issued final supervisory Guidance regarding the use of social media.

It is the policy of Warren-Boynton State Bank to (i) determine from time to time the extent to which its use, or the
use by its directors, officers, and employees, of social media is or may be impacted by FFIEC's Guidance and,
(i) based on such determinations, to take appropriate steps to manage risks associated with such use.

Warren-Boynton State Bank -2- Effective: April 03, 2025



EXHIBIT “A~”

CRA COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

The following individuals comprise the Bank’s CRA Compliance
Committee:

No CRA Compliance Committee

POL Commumity Remvestment Act 10:01,10 Policy Statement - SN
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EXHIBIT “B”

ASSESSMENT AREA (S)

The Bank’s Assessment Area (s) is as follows:

The Warren-Boynton State Bank’s Assessment Area (s) is considered to be Sangamon County,
llinois, Block Numbering Areas 9522.00 and 9523.00 in Morgan County, lllinois, Block
Numbering Areas 9560.00, 9561.00, 9562.00, 9563.00, 9564.00 and 9565.00 in Macoupin
County, Illinois and Block Numbering Areas 9736.00 and 9737.00 in Greene County, lllinois.
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EXHIBIT "C"

Warren-Boynton State Bank

New Berlin, Illinois

COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT ACT NOTICE

Under the Federal Community Reinvestment Act (CRA), the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) evaluates our record of helping to meet the credit needs of this community
consistent with safe and sound operations. The FDIC also takes this record into account when
deciding on certain applications submitted by us.

Your involvement is encouraged.

You are entitled to certain information about our operations and our performance under the
CRA, including, for example, information about our branches, such as their location and services
provided at them; the public section of our most recent CRA Performance Evaluation, prepared
by the FDIC; and comments received from the public relating to our performance in helping to
meet community credit needs, as well as our responses to those comments. You may review this
information today.

At least 30 days before the beginning of each quarter, the FDIC publishes a nationwide list of the
banks that are scheduled for CRA examination in that quarter. This list is available from the
Regional Director, Division of Supervision and Consumer Protection (DSC), FDIC 300 South
Riverside Plaza, Suite 1700, Chicago, IL. 60606. You may send written comments about our
performance in helping to meet community credit needs to:

Kevin L. Hermes
Warren-Boynton State Bank
702 W. Illinois Street
New Berlin, IL 62670

and FDIC Regional Director.  You may also submit comments electronically through the
FDIC’s Web site at www.fdic.gov/regulations/cra. Your letter, together with any response by us,
will be considered by the FDIC in evaluating our CRA performance and may be made public.

You may ask to look at any comments received by the FDIC Regional Director. You may also
request from the FDIC Regional Director an announcement of our applications covered by the
CRA filed with the FDIC. We are an affiliate of WB Bancorp, Inc., a bank holding company.
You may request from Colette A. Fried, AVP, Federal Reserve Bank of Chicago, 203 South La
Salle Street, Chicago, IL 60604 an announcement of applications covered by the CRA filed by
bank holding companies.



EHIBIT "D"
Warren-Boynton State Bank

New Berlin, Ilinois

COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT ACT NOTICE

Under the Federal Community Reinvestment Act (CRA), the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) evaluates our record of helping to meet the credit needs of this community
consistent with safe and sound operations. The FDIC also takes this record into account when
deciding on certain applications submitted by us.

Your involvement is encouraged.

You are entitled to certain information about our operations and our performance under the CRA.
You may review today the public section of our most recent CRA evaluation, prepared by the
FDIC, and a list of services provided at this branch. You may also have access to the following
additional information, which we will make available to you at this branch within five calendar days
after you make a request to us: (1) a map showing the assessment area containing this branch, which
is the area in which the FDIC evaluates our CRA performance in this community; (2) information
about our branches in this assessment area; (3) a list of services we provide at those locations; (4)
data on our lending performance in this assessment area; and (5) copies of all written comments
received by us that specifically relate to our CRA performance in this assessment area, and any
responses we have made to those comments. If we are operating under an approved strategic plan,
you may also have access to a copy of the plan.

If you would like to review information about our CRA performance in other communities served
by us, the public file for our entire bank is available at Warren-Boynton State Bank, Illinois, located
at 702 W. Illinois St. New Berlin Illinois, 62670.

At least 30 days before the beginning of each quarter, the FDIC publishes a nationwide list of the
banks that are scheduled for CRA examination in that quarter. This list is available from the
Regional Director, Division of Supervision and Consumer Protection (DSC), FDIC 300 S.
Riverside Plaza, Suite 1700, Chicago, Illinois 60606. You may send written comments about our
performance in helping to meet community credit needs to:

Kevin L. Hermes
Warren-Boynton State Bank
702 W. Illinois St
New Berlin, IL 62670

and the FDIC Regional Director. You may also submit comments electronically through the
FDIC’s Web site at www.fdic.gov/regulations/cra. Your letter, together with any response by us,
will be considered by the FDIC in evaluating our CRA performance and may be made public.

You may ask to look at any comments received by the FDIC Regional Director. You may also
request from the FDIC Regional Director an announcement of our applications covered by the CRA
filed with the FDIC. We are an affiliate of W. B. Bancorp, Inc., a bank holding company. You may
request from Colette A. Fried, AVP, Federal Reserve Bank of Chicago, 230 South La Salle
Street, Chicago, IL 60604, an announcement of applications covered by the CRA filed by bank
holding companies.



EXHIBIT “E”
CRA POLICY: SUPPLEMENT FOR SMALL BANKS

The implementing regulations to the Community Reinvestment Act of
1977 (“CRA”) were revised for small banks effective September 1,
2005 to include banks with assets of less than $1 billion without
regard to holding company affiliation (effective January 1, 2010
this amount was revised to $1.098 billion). Small banks operating
under this definition are to be evaluated under the small bank
lending test, unless the small bank elects to be assessed under
the lending, investment, and service tests, elects to be assessed
under the community development test, or adopts an approved CRA
strategic plan. Under the small bank lending test, small banks are
to be assessed by their loan-to-deposit ratio (including community
development loans and qualified investments), their percentage of
loans in their assessment area, their record of lending to
different income levels and businesses and farms of different
sizes, the geographic distribution of their loans, and their
record of taking action in response to written complaints about
their performance in helping to meet credit needs in their
assessment area. The definition of “community development”
includes affordable housing (including multifamily rental
housing) for low- or moderate-income (LMI) individuals; community
services targeted to LMI individuals; activities that promote
economic development by financing businesses or farms with gross
annual revenues under $1 million; and activities that revitalize
or stabilize LMI geographies (which include designated disaster
areas and designated distressed or underserved nonmetropolitan
areas, effective September 1, 2005).

This bank will be prepared to be evaluated under the small bank
lending test and does not elect to be assessed under the lending,
investment, and service tests, does not elect to be assessed
under the community development test, and has not adopted an
approved CRA strategic plan.

POL Community Reinvestment Act 10,0110 Policy Statement - SN
© 2010 PRINGLE® PUBLICATIONS CORPORATION/Wolters Kluwer Financial Services Page 10
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Annual CRA Self-Assessment

October 31, 2025

e The bank’s loans-to-deposit ratio reflects a reasonable concentration
of bank assets in loans. The bank’s average net loan-to-deposit ratio
since January of 2020 is 85.53%

e The bank’s management strives to provide necessary funds for real
estate loans within its defined assessment area.

e The bank’s performance in lending within its assessment area is as
follows. Based upon 2024 HMDA data, the bank originated
approximately 92.1% (105 out of 114) of the number of loans within
its defined assessment area and within the MSA area where all offices
are located.

e The bank’s performance in lending to smaller businesses as of the
June 30, 2025 Call Report reflects a good concentration to smaller
sized businesses. Approximately 67% of the number of loans made to
small businesses from Schedule RC-C Loans to Small Businesses
were originated with balances of less than $100,000, which account
for about 26% of those total outstanding balances.

e The bank’s performance in lending to farms of different sizes as of the
June 30, 2025 Call Report appears adequate. Approximately 41% of
all farm loans reported on Schedule RC-C Agricultural Loans to Small
Farms had balances of less than $100,000. This indicates the bank’s
desire to meet the needs of small farms.

e There have been no CRA complaints filed with the bank or the FDIC
Regional Office since the prior CRA Performance Evaluation on
February 5, 2024.

In addition, the Warren Boynton State Bank has continued to provide
financing for the purchase and refinancing of 1-4 family residential units as
well as local business and farm endeavors.

702 W. Illinois Street 201 East State Street 332 North Main Street 3030 Spring Mill Drive
New Berlin, IL 62670 Modesto, IL 62667 Palmyra, IL 62674 Springfield, IL 62704
Ph: (217) 488-6091 Ph: (217) 439-7267 Ph: (217) 436-2411 Ph: (217) 787-0430

www.wbsb.com
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Additional examples of monetary and/or voluntary support from the bank
and/or its employees within the community include:

$215,000 of other Sangamon County School Districts Bonds
$273,000 of Palmyra/Modesto Water Commission Bonds
$320,000 Lincoln Land Community College Bonds
$500,000 Springfield Mass Transit Dist. Bonds

New Berlin Community Club

Sangamon County Fair - $15,000 annual support
Knight’s of Columbus

North Mac Schools — volunteer/donor

Greater Springfield Chamber of Commerce

Youth Service Bureau Board of Directors and donor
Lincoln Land Community College Foundation donor
Sangamon Valley American Red Cross donor

American Business Club

Rees Carillon Society donor

Parent Place donor

Sojourn Center donor

702 W. Illinois Street 201 East State Street 332 North Main Street 3030 Spring Mill Drive
New Berlin, IL 62670 Modesto, IL 62667 Palmyra, IL 62674 Springfield, IL 62704
Ph: (217) 488-6091 Ph:*(217) 439-7267 Ph: (217) 436-2411 Ph: (217) 787-0430

www.wbsb.com
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Denim & Diamonds benefitting Simmons Cancer Institute @ SIU
committee and donor

Care-O-Sel Child Care Center Board of Director

The Parent Place Diaper Drive — sponsor family at Christmas
Angel Tree for CUSD #16 students

American Cancer Society donor

Downtown Springfield Inc.

Macoupin County CEO Program

Scholar-Athlete Awards through Jacksonville Rotary Club
Northwestern FFA Alumni Association — Scholarships

Macoupin County Agriculture Education Foundation — Scholarships
Northwestern Area Food Pantry

Macoupin County 4-H Foundation

Ilinois 4-H Foundation

Northwestern High School Senior Student of the Year Scholarship
Northwestern Elementary School Positive Behavior Sponsorship
Palmyra Lions Club — Christmas Food Baskets

Muscular Dystrophy Association donor

Macoupin Center for the Developmentally Disabled donor

Northwestern Post Prom

702 W. Illinois Street 201 East State Street 332 North Main Street 3030 Spring Mill Drive
New Berlin, IL 62670 Modesto, IL 62667 Palmyra, IL 62674 Springfield, IL 62704
Ph: (217) 488-6091 Ph: (217) 439-7267 Ph: (217) 436-2411 Ph: (217) 787-0430

www.wbsb.com
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Otter Creek Quail Forever donor
Hearts and Hands Food Ministry donor
Westfair Christian Academy

Macoupin County Center for the Developmentally Disabled Camp
Good Times donor

Capital Area Realtors — Safe Family for Children

Barn to Barn Golf Outing donor

ALS Association Walk to Defeat ALS Sponsor & Walk Team
Greenfield Northwestern Baseball donor

Mé&M Shrine Club donor

Northwestern Back to School Bash donor

Golf for Kids donor

United Way volunteer

New Berlin Area Community Development League
Loami Food Pantry donor

Illinois Association of Community Action Agencies donor
Franklin 4™ of July Sponsorship

Make-a-Wish Golf Outing sponsorship

Macoupin County Fair Association

702 W. Illinois Street 201 East State Street 332 North Main Street 3030 Spring Mill Drive
New Berlin, IL 62670 Modesto, IL 62667 Palmyra, IL 62674 Springfield, IL 62704
Ph: (217) 488-6091 Ph: (217) 439-7267 Ph: (217) 436-2411 Ph: (217) 787-0430

www.wbsb.com
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Girls on the Run donor

Springfield Area Art Association donor

New Berlin Elementary PTO Board Member
Sangamon County Fair Board Member

Sangamon County Farm Bureau Member

American Lung Association donor
Greenfield/Northwestern Volleyball — Volley for a Cure donor
Palmyra American Legion donor

All American Jr. Sheep Show donor

Mercy Communities donor

Rt. 111 35 Mile Yard Sale donor

Blooming Grove Christian Church Toy Drive donor
Boys and Girls Club of Central Illinois donor
Educational Center for the Visually Impaired donor
Springfield YMCA Strong Kids Campaign donor
Chatham Jaycees Light up the Park donor

Ball Chatham Educational Foundation donor
American Heart Association donor

Pawnee Foodbank donor

702 W. Illinois Street 201 East State Street 332 North Main Street 3030 Spring Mill Drive
New Berlin, IL 62670 Modesto, IL 62667 Palmyra, IL 62674 Springfield, IL 62704
Ph: (217) 488-6091 Ph: (217) 439-7267 Ph: (217) 436-2411 Ph: (217) 787-0430

www.wbsb.com
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Virden Chamber of Commerce Senior Luncheon donor
Northwestern PBIS — Wildcat Pride Award

Northwestern Student of the Month Sponsor

Habitat for Humanity “Raise the Roof” donor

Girl Scouts of Central Illinois donor

Rutledge Youth Foundation volunteer

Big Brother Big Sister Golf Outing donor

St. John’s Lutheran Church Golf Outing donor

Pretzel Open (Sports Booster) Golf Outing donor

Springfield Memorial Foundation donor

We Dignify donor

I1lini Central High School donor

Grace Food Pantry Food Drive donor

Educational Center for the Visually Impaired — Board Member/donor
Hope School donor

New Berlin High School FFA donor

Ivy Heart Memorial Golf Outing sponsor

Pleasant Plains Community Club Festival of Wreaths & Trees

Sangamon County Farm Bureau Youth Expo sponsor

702 W. Illinois Street 201 East State Street 332 North Main Street 3030 Spring Mill Drive
New Berlin, IL 62670 Modesto, IL 62667 Palmyra, IL 62674 Springfield, IL 62704
Ph: (217) 488-6091 Ph: (217) 439-7267 Ph: (217) 436-2411 Ph: (217) 787-0430

www.wbsb.com
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Project 3" Day Wildcat Way donor

Carlinville Area Hospital — Haunted Drive Thru sponsor
Macoupin County Ag Education Foundation donor
Carlinville Area Hospital — Care Foundation donor
Waverly Picnic donor
Village of Hettick Fish Fry donor
UA Elite Softball Team sponsorship
Senior Services of Central Illinois — Board Member
Rotary Club South — Member

702 W. Illinois Street 201 East State Street 332 North Main Street

New Berlin, IL 62670 Modesto, IL 62667 Palmyra, IL 62674

Ph: (217) 488-6091 Ph: (217) 439-7267 Ph: (217) 436-2411

www.whbsb.com

3030 Spring Mill Drive
Springfield, IL 62704
Ph: (217) 787-0430



PUBLIC DISCLOSURE

Feburary 5, 2024

COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT ACT
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Warren-Boynton State Bank
Certificate Number: 11674

702 West Illinois Street
New Berlin, Illinois 62670

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
Division of Depositor and Consumer Protection
Chicago Regional Office

300 South Riverside Plaza, Suite 1700
Chicago, Illinois 60606

This document is an evaluation of this institution’s record of meeting the credit needs of its entire
community, including low- and moderate-income neighborhoods, consistent with safe and sound
operation of the institution. This evaluation is not, nor should it be construed as, an assessment of the
financial condition of this institution. The rating assigned to this institution does not represent an
analysis, conclusion, or opinion of the federal financial supervisory agency concerning the safety and
soundness of this financial institution.
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INSTITUTION RATING
INSTITUTION’S CRA RATING: This institution is rated Satisfactory.

An institution in this group has a satisfactory record of helping to meet the credit needs of its
assessment area, including low- and moderate-income neighborhoods, in a manner consistent with
its resources and capabilities. Examiners did not identify any evidence of discriminatory or other
illegal credit practices. The following points summarize Warren-Boynton State Bank’s (WBSB)
performance:

¢ The loan-to-deposit (LTD) ratio is more than reasonable given the institution’s size, financial
condition, and assessment area (AA) credit needs.

» The bank made a majority of its home mortgage, small business, and small farm loans in the
AA.

* The geographic distribution of loans reflects reasonable dispersion throughout the AA.

 The distribution of borrowers reflects reasonable penetration of loans among farms and
businesses of different sizes and individuals of different income levels.

 The institution did not receive any CRA-related complaints since the previous evaluation;
therefore, this factor did not affect the rating.



DESCRIPTION OF INSTITUTION

Warren-Boynton State Bank is a $244.3 million financial institution headquartered in New Berlin,
Illinois. The institution is wholly-owned by WB Bancorp, Inc., a one-bank holding company and
has no affiliates or subsidiaries that engage in lending activity. WBSB received a Satisfactory
rating at its previous FDIC Performance Evaluation, dated December 18, 2017, based on
Interagency Small Institution Examination Procedures.

The bank operates from four locations in central Illinois. The main office in New Berlin and branch
in Springfield are both located in Sangamon County. The branches in Modesto and Palmyra are
both located in Macoupin County. The main office in New Berlin is located in a middle-income
census tract. The Springfield branch is located in an upper-income tract and both the Modesto and
Palmyra branches are located in moderate-income tracts. There have been no changes in branches
since the previous evaluation.

WBSB offers an array of traditional loan and deposit products. Loan products include agricultural,
commercial, home mortgage, and consumer loans for auto and personal purposes. Deposit products
include checking, savings, money market deposit accounts, and certificates of deposit. Alternate
banking services include internet banking, mobile, online bill pay, and access to automated teller
machines (ATMs) at the New Berlin and Palmyra branch, and a bar and grill in New Berlin.

As of September 30, 2023, WBSB reported total assets of $244.3 million, which included total
loans of $186.5 million and total deposits of $215.9 million. The following table illustrates the
bank’s loan portfolio distribution.

Loan Portfolio Distribution as of 9/30/2023

Loan Category : $(000s) %
Construction, Land Development, and Other Land Loans 3,714 2.0
Secured by Farmland 18,801 10.1
Secured by 1-4 Family Residential Properties 66,457 356
Secured by Multi-family (5 or more) Residential Properties 7,449 4.0
Secured by Non-farm Non-Residential Properties 25,868 13.9
Total Real Estate Loans 122,289 65.6
Commercial and Industrial Loans 49,186 26.4
Agricultural Production and Other Loans to Farmers 7,957 43
Consumer 4,460 2.4
Lease Financing Receivables (net of unearned income) 2,542 1.4
Other 66 0.1
Total Loans 186,500 100.0

Source: Reports of Condition and Income. Due to rounding, totals may not equal 100%




DESCRIPTION OF ASSESSMENT AREAS

The CRA requires each financial institution to define one or more assessment areas (AAs) within
which its CRA performance will be evaluated. WBSB has designated two contiguous AAs; the
Springfield, IL MSA (Springfield MSA) is comprised of all of Sangamon county and two tracts in
southeastern Morgan County (9522 and 9523) and the St. Louis, MO-IL MSA (St. Louis MSA) is
comprised of six tracts in northern Macoupin County (9560, 9561, 9562, 9563, 9564, and 9565) and
two tracts in northeastern Greene County (9736 and 9737).

Sangamon County is part of the Springfield MSA and Macoupin County is part of the St. Louis
MSA. Morgan and Green Counties are rural in nature and are a part of the Illinois Non-MSA;
however, Morgan County is part of the Springfield-Jacksonville-Lincoln Combined Statistical Area,
so the tracts in this county will be discussed as part of the Springfield MSA AA. The two tracts in
Greene County are adjacent to Macoupin County and is evaluated as part of the St. Louis MSA AA.
The AAs conforms to the requirements of the CRA regulation and does not arbitrarily exclude any
low- or moderate- income areas.

SCOPE OF EVALUATION

General Information

This evaluation covers the period from the prior evaluation dated December 18, 2017, to the current
evaluation dated February 5, 2024. Examiners used the Interagency Small Institution Examination
Procedures to evaluate WBSB’s CRA performance. Examiners conducted a full scope review of
both assessment areas.

Activities Reviewed

- -Examiners determined that the bank’s major product lines are small business, home mortgage, and
small farm loans. This conclusion considered the bank’s business strategy and the number and
dollar volume of loans originated during the evaluation period. Bank records indicated that the
lending focus and product offerings remained consistent throughout the evaluation period.

As of September 30, 2023, commercial loans comprised 40.3 percent of the bank’s loan portfolio,
home mortgage loans (including multifamily) comprised 39.6 percent, and agricultural loans
comprised 14.4 percent. Consumer loans only represent 2.4 percent of the loan portfolio, are not
considered a business focus and not included in the analysis as the loan segment would not provide
material support for the conclusions or rating.

This evaluation considered all small business and small farms originated in 2023. The bank is not

required to report small business and small farm data and elected not to do so; therefore, examiners
compared the bank’s performance to D&B data as a standard of comparison. WBSB originated 74
small farm loans totaling $21.4 million, and 144 small business loans totaling $48 million in 2023.
Sampling procedures were utilized for the borrower profile criterion.



In addition, this evaluation considered all loans reported on the bank’s 2022 and 2023 Home
Mortgage Disclosure Act (HMDA) Loan Application Registers (LAR). The bank originated 334
home mortgages totaling $38.6 million in 2022, and originated 117 home mortgages totaling $16.2
million in 2023. This evaluation presents performance for 2022, the most recent full calendar year
with aggregate data available. Aggregate lending data from 2022 and U.S Census data from 2020
were used as a comparison factor to assess the bank’s performance.

Examiners reviewed the number and dollar volume of loans. While the number and dollar volume

of loans are presented, the performance by the number of loans is emphasized because it is a better
indicator of the number of individuals, businesses, and farms served.

CONCLUSIONS ON PERFORMANCE CRITERIA

LENDING TEST

WBSB demonstrated reasonable performance under the Lending Test. The geographic distribution of
loans and borrower profile analyses primarily support this conclusion.

Loan-to-Deposit Ratio

The LTD ratio is more than reasonable given the institution’s size, financial condition, and AA
credit needs. As of December 31, 2023, the bank’s net LTD ratio was 88.8 percent and averaged
83.7 percent over the past 24 calendar quarters from March 31, 2018 to December 31, 2023. The
ratio was its lowest at 72 percent as of June 20, 2021, and was its highest of 100.3 percent as of
December 31, 2022.

Examiners compared WBSB’s average net LTD ratio to those of similarly-situated institutions
(SSIs), which were selected based on asset size, geographic location, and lending focus. As shown
in the following table, WBSB’s average net LTD ratio exceeds all three SSIs selected.

Loan-to-Deposit Ratio Comparison
Total Assets as of Average Net

Bank 9/30/2023 LTD Ratio

$(000s) (%)
Warren-Boynton State Bank 244320 83.7
Similarly-Situated Institution #1 224,192 55.2
Similarly-Situated Institution #2 795,893 74.5
Similarly-Situated Institution #3 196,138 583
Source: Reports of Condition and Income 3/31/2018 through $/30/2023

Assessment Area Concentration

Examiners analyzed all home mortgages originated in 2022 and 2023, as well as all small business
and small farm loans originated or renewed in 2023 to determine the percentage of loans extended



inside and outside the AAs. Overall, WBSB originated a majority of its loans by number and dollar
amount for each product within the AAs, as shown in the following table.

Lending Inside and Outside of the Assessment Area

Number of Loans Dollar Amount of Loans $(000s)
Loan Category Inside Outside Total Inside Outside Total
# % # % # $ % $ % | $(000s)

Home Mortgage

2022 301 90.1 33 9.9 334 33,707 87.3 4,924 12.7 | 38,631

2023 101 86.3 16 13.7 117 13,302 82.1 2,904 17.9 | 16,206

Subtotal 402 89.1 49 10.9 451 47,009 85.7 7,828 14.3 | 54,837
Small Business 135 75.4 44 24.6 179 11,139 61.1 7,098 389 | 18,237
Small Farm 68 86.1 11 13.9 79 10,454 84.7 1,888 153 | 12,342
Total 605 853 | 104 | 147 709 68,602 80.3 16,814 19.7 | 85,416

Source: Bank Data
Due to rounding, totals may not equal 100.0%

Geographic Distribution

The geographic distribution of loans reflects reasonable dispersion throughout the bank’s AAs.
This conclusion is supported by the reasonable distribution of loans across all three product lines.
Examiners only consider loans granted inside the AA, with an emphasis placed on the distribution
of loans in low- and moderate-income geographies. A complete discussion of the bank’s
performance for this criterion can be found in the separate AA sections of this evaluation.

Borrower Profile

The distribution of borrowers reflects, given the product lines offered by the institution, reasonable
penetration among retail customers of different income levels and businesses and farms of different
sizes. A complete discussion of the performance for this criterion is in the separate assessment area
sections of this evaluation.

Response to Complaints

The bank did not receive any CRA-related complaints since the previous evaluation; therefore, this
criterion did not affect the Lending Test rating.

DISCRIMINATORY OR OTHER ILLEGAL CREDIT PRACTICES REVIEW

Examiners did not identify any evidence of discriminatory or other illegal credit practices;
therefore, this consideration did not affect the institution’s overall CRA rating.



Springfield, IL. MSA - Full-Scope Review

DESCRIPTION OF INSTITUTION’S OPERATIONS IN SPRINGFIELD, IL
MSA AA

WBSB operates two offices in Sangamon County, Illinois; the main office in New Berlin, and one
full-service branch in Springfield. As of June 30, 2023, bank deposits in the assessment area
represented 72.5 percent of total deposits of the bank. A majority of the bank’s lending and deposit
operations are within this AA; therefore, it carries more weight towards the overall conclusions than
the St. Louis MSA.

Economic and Demographic Data

This assessment area includes all of Sangamon County, as well as two census tracts in southeastern
Morgan County. The population in this AA is 202,533 according to the 2020 U.S. Census data. Of
the AA’s 56 census tracts, 10 are low-income, 14 are moderate-income, 16 are middle-income, and
16 are upper-income. The 2020 U.S. Census split tracts 20 and 37 in Sangamon County into two
tracts each (20.01, 20.02 and 37.01, 37.02), but the AA coverage did not change since the previous
evaluation. Since the prior evaluation, four tracts shifted to the low-income category, five shifted to
moderate-income, one shifted to middle-income, and one shifted to upper-income. The following
table provides demographic information on the AA.

Demographic Information of the Assessment Area

Assessment Area: Springfield MSA

Demographic Characteristics # "/[(: (:;: # M&:} (e);z;te 1:2‘1‘:,]; }/{,p g: ; 0/1:1‘:; 4
Geographies (Census Tracts) 56 17.9 25.0 28.6 28.6 0.0
Population by Geography . 202,533 12.7 20.1 31.1 36.1 0.0
Housing Units by Geography 94,918 14.1 227 323 30.9 0.0
Owner-Occupied Units by Geography 61,029 1.6 18.8 343 393 0.0
Occupied Rental Units by Geography 25,658 27.6 28.8 28.1 15.5 0.0
Vacant Units by Geography 8,231 20.8 329 29.6 16.7 0.0
Businesses by Geography 23,623 12.0 22.0 204 45.5 0.0
Farms by Geography 922 5.6 11.6 43.4 394 0.0
Family Distribution by Income Level 51,906 23.6 15.9 20.9 39.6 0.0
Household Distribution by Income 86,687 248 16.0 16.9 42.3 0.0
Level
Median Family Income MSA - 44100 $83,948 Median Housing Value $136,019
Springfield, IL. MSA
Median Family Income Non-MSAs — $68,958| Median Gross Rent $823
IL

Families Below Poverty Level 9.6%

Sources: 2020 U.S. Census and 2023 D&B Data
Due to rounding, totals may not equal 100.0%
(%) The NA category consisis of geographies that have not been assigned an income classification.
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All of the low- and moderate-income census tracts are located in Sangamon County. The bank’s
main office in New Berlin is located in a middle-income tract, and the Springfield branch is located

in an upper-income tract.

The 2022 FFIEC median family income levels are used to analyze home mortgage loans under the
borrower profile criterion. The low-, moderate-, middle-, and upper-income categories are
presented in the following table.

Median Family Income Ranges
Median Family Incomes <L5%‘32, solr/f,og;e:?;% 80%1\/::)(13;;0% ;%ﬁ/:
Springfield, IL. MSA Median Family Income (44100)
2022 (895,400) | <847,700 | $47,70010<§76,320 | $76,320t0<$114,480 | >$114,480
IL NA Median Family Income (99999)
2022 (§76,100) | <$38,050 | $33,05010<560,880 | $60,380t0<$91320 | 891,320
Source: FFIEC

The local economy is largely based on service industries and represents the largest portion of

businesses (35 percent); followed by non-classifiable establishments (25.4 percent), retail trade
(10.2 percent), and finance, insurance, and real estate (10 percent). In addition, 91.8 percent of
assessment arca businesses have nine or fewer employees and 89 percent operate from a single

location.

The analysis of small business and small farm loans under the borrower profile criterion compares
the distribution of loans to the distribution of businesses and farms by revenue category. According
to 2023 D&B data, the assessment area contained 23,623 businesses. Gross annual revenues
(GARs) for these businesses are below:

* 86.2 percent have GARs of $1.0 million or less,
* 3.3 percent have GARs over $1.0 million, and
* 10.5percent have unknown GARs.

The assessment area also contains 922 farms. GARs for these farms are as follows:

* 98 percent have GARs of $1.0 million or less,
* 0.9 percent have GARs over $1.0 million, and
* 1.1 percent have unknown GARSs.

The following table shows the unemployment rates for Sangamon County, Morgan County, the
state of Illinois, and the national average over the past year. The unemployment rate in the AA
remains lower than the state, and in line with the national average.



Unemployment Rates

November 2022 November 2023
Area
% %
Sangamon County 3.6 35
Morgan County 34 34
Illinois 42 42
National Average 3.6 35

Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics.

Competition

The AA is competitive for financial services due to the presence of several financial institutions.
According to the FDIC Deposit Market Share data as of June 30, 2023, 26 financial institutions
operated 79 offices inside the AA. Of these, WBSB ranked twelfth with a 1.8 percent deposit
market share. The top 4 institutions accounted for 57.3 percent of the market share.

There is also a high level of competition for home mortgage loans among several banks, credit
unions, and non-depository mortgage lenders. According to 2022 Peer Mortgage Data, 217 lenders
reported 5,482 residential mortgage loan originations or purchases in the assessment area. WBSB
ranked fifth with a market share of 5.1 percent among these lenders. The top four lenders accounted
for 33.5 percent of the total market share.

Community Contact(s)

- As part of the evaluation process, examiners contact third parties active in the AA to assist in
identifying local credit needs. This information helps determine whether local financial institutions
are responsive to these needs and also shows what credit opportunities are available.

Examiners used information from a community contact with a local economic development
nonprofit, which serves Sangamon County. The contact stated that the major employers in the area
include government, public administration, school districts, and hospitals. Most jobs are located in
the Springfield area, with much of the area outside being involved in agriculture. The contact stated
that the overall population is aging a bit, but is consistent.

Public spending on capital improvement projects is strong, but construction in the private sector has
somewhat recently weakened. The contact stated that housing prices have gone up quite a bit in the
last couple of years, especially in the single family market. There have been several construction
projects in Springfield itself and surrounding communities, but these are almost exclusively market
rate homes for higher income families. The contact stated that the primary credit needs of the
community are housing from multifamily to single family, and especially housing targeted towards
LMI individuals, as there is big demand for this. They also stated that small business support for
startups is a need of the community.



Credit Needs
Considering information from the community contact, bank management, and economic and
demographic data, examiners determined that lending for home mortgage and small business

represent the primary credit needs of the AA. The bank demonstrated reasonable performance in
meeting these needs, as detailed throughout this evaluation.

CONCLUSIONS ON PERFORMANCE CRITERIA IN SPRINGFIELD, IL
MSA AA

LENDING TEST

Geographic Distribution

The geographic distribution of home mortgage, small business, and small farm loans reflects
reasonable penetration throughout the assessment area. For this criterion, examiners focused on the
percentage by number of loans in low- and moderate- income census tracts. This analysis presents
only loans originated inside the assessment area.

Home Mortgage Loans

WBSB has demonstrated excellent penetration of home mortgage lending throughout its assessment
area in 2022. Examiners compared the bank’s performance to the percentage of owner-occupied
housing units by income tract category.

As shown in the following table, the bank’s lending in low-income tracts of 20 percent exceeded
both the percentage of housing units in these tracts of 7.6 percent and aggregate performance of 6.2
percent. The bank’s lending in moderate-income tracts of 41.8 percent also exceeds both the
percentage of housing units in these tracts of 18.8 percent and aggregate performance of 23.9
~-percent.. WBSB’s performance in-the low- and moderate-income tracts, along with the information
from the community contact signaling a need of home mortgages in these areas reflects positively
on the bank’s efforts to meet the credit needs of its AA. This is also despite the distance to the
bank’s branches from these tracts and competition in the area, further demonstrating a willingness
of the bank to lend throughout their AA.



Geographic Distribution of Home Mortgage Loans
Assessment Area: Springfield MSA
% of Owner- Aggregate
Tract Income Level Occupied Performance # % $(000s) %
Housing Units % of #
Low
2022 7.6 | 62 [ s6 ] 200 | 450 | 142
Moderate
2022 18.8 | 2390 | 17 [ a8 | 1293 | 406
Middle
2022 34.3 | 303 | 80 ] 286 [ 11223 | 352
Upper
2022 39.3 | 396 [ 21 [ 96 [ 3165 | 99
Totals
2022 1000 | 1000 [ 280 | 1000 | 31,842 | 100.0
Sources: 2020 U.S. Census; Bank Data, 2022 HMDA A ggregate Data, "--" data not available.
Due to rounding, totals may not equal 100.0%

Small Business Loans

The geographic distribution of small business loans reflects poor dispersion throughout the AA. The
following table shows that the bank made two loans in low-income census tracts and six in moderate-
income tracts. This level of lending is 10 and 15.9 percentage points, respectively, lower than the
percentage of business in the area.

Geographic Distribution of Small Business Loans
. Assessment Area: Springfield MSA

Tract Income Level % of Businesses l # l % I $(000s) l %
Low

2023 12.0 | 2 | 20 T 1o | 108
Moderate

2023 22.0 | 6 | 61 | sa1 | %9
Middle

2023 204 | 712 | 77 | 6258 | 657
Upper

2023 45.5 L 19 ] w2 T 132 | 146
Totals

2023 100.0 | 9 | 1000 | 955 | 1000
Sources: 2023 D&B Data; Bank Data; "--" data not available.
Due to rounding, 1otals may not equal 100.0%
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Examiners took into consideration the location of the low- and moderate-income tracts and
composition of businesses in the area. A majority of these tracts are located a substantial distance
from the bank’s nearest branch in Springfield, to the north and east. Many of the businesses in these
tracts are also larger and located near downtown Springfield, and tend to seek financing from larger
institutions. While, there are some challenges due to the competitive nature of the area and the
location of the bank’s branches in relation to available lending opportunities, the small business
dispersion for this AA is considered poor.

Small Farm Loans

Although the geographic distribution of loans appears to be poor, it is considered reasonable given the
lending opportunities and competitive nature of the area. None of the bank’s 48 loans were originated
in low- or moderate-income tracts in 2023, but there are very few farms located in these tracts (5.6 and
11.6 percent, respectively). All of these tracts are located in and near the city center of Springfield and
specifically on the north and northeast side where there is no farm land. This area is also a significant
distance from the bank’s Springfield branch and main office in New Berlin, which is located southwest
of Springfield. As mentioned previously, competition is also abundant in the Springfield area, and
farmers in these areas have several options with other banks, as well as the Farm Credit
Administration.

Geographic Distribution of Small Farm Loans
Assessment Area: Springfield MSA

Tract Income Level % of Farms I # l % l $(000s) I %
Low

2023 5.6 | o [ o0 ] o T oo
Moderate

2023 116 | o ] 00 ] o T o0
Middle

: - 2023] 434 | a3 | 896 | 6945 [ 048

Upper

2023 39.4 | 5 | 104 | 30 | 52
Totals

2023 1000 | 48 | 1000 [ 7325 [ 1000
Sources: 2023 D&B Data; Bank Data; "--" data not available.
Due to rounding, totals may not equal 100.0%

Borrower Profile

The distribution of borrowers reflects reasonable penetration among individuals of different
incomes and businesses of different sizes. Examiners focused on the percentage by number of
home mortgage loans to low- and moderate- income borrowers, as well as by number of small
business and small farm loans to businesses and farms with GARs of $1 million or less. This
analysis presents only loans originated inside the assessment area.
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Home Mortgage Loans

WBSB reflects reasonable penetration among borrowers of different incomes in its home mortgage
lending in 2022. Examiners compared the bank’s performance to demographic data and aggregate
performance.

As shown in the following table, the bank originated 12.1 percent of its home mortgage loans to low-
income borrowers, which is comparable to aggregate performance of 14 percent and is reflective of
actual lending activity or other banks operating in the assessment area. While the bank’s performance
is below the demographic data of 23.6 percent, it is important to note that 9.6 percent of families
residing in the assessment area have incomes below the poverty level. These families typically do not
possess the financial means to qualify for or afford a home mortgage loan due to financial constraints.
When considering this factor, the bank’s performance is also closer to the aggregate performance.

Additionally, the bank’s lending to moderate-income borrowers of 8.2 percent trails both the
population percentage and aggregate performance of 15.9 percent and 19 percent, respectively.
However, the AA is highly competitive as mentioned previously. In 2022, 103 financial institutions
originated 1,043 home mortgage loans to moderate-income borrowers with the top five lenders
accounting for 40.8 percent of the market share. WBSB ranked twelfth among these institutions with a
market share of 2.21 percent.

Additionally, 44.6 percent of the bank’s originations in 2022 were to borrowers with no reported
income. These loans are typically originated to investors or businesses that are purchasing 1-4 family
homes for rental purposes. Taking all of this information into consideration, the bank’s performance is
considered reasonable in meeting the credit needs of low- and moderate-income borrowers.

Distribution of Home Mortgage Loans by Borrower Income Level
Assessment Area: New Berlin Springfield AA
, . Aggregate
Borrower Income Level | % of Families | Performance # % $(000s) %Yo
Yo of #
Low
2022 236 | 140 [ 34 [ 21 | 2ms | 77
Moderate
2022 159 | w0 [ 23 [ 82 | 183 | 57
Middle
2022 209 | 182 [ 21 [ 75 | 1904 | 60
Upper
2022 396 | 275 | 71 [ 215 | 9497 | 298
Not Available
2022 00 | 213 ] 125 [ 446 | 16183 | 508
Totals
2022] 1000 | 100.0 280 | 1000 | 3182 [ 1000
Sources: 2020 U.S. Census; Bank Data, 2022 HMDA Aggregate Data. Due to rounding, totals may not equal 100.0%; “~-" data not available.
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Small Business Loans

WBSB exhibited reasonable penetration to business customers of different sizes in 2023. As shown in
the following table, the bank originated 94.4 percent of its small business loans to businesses with $1
million or less in GAR. This level of lending is above the percentage of businesses in the AA with
GARs of $1 million or less at 86.2 percent. This demonstrates the bank’s willingness to lend to
businesses of different sizes, in particular to the small businesses operating within the AA.

Distribution of Small Business Loans by Gross Annual Revenue Category

Assessment Area: Springfield MSA

Gross Revenue Level % of Businesses ' # I Yo l $(000s) I %
<=$1,000,000

2023 86.2 | 34 ] 944 | 2793 [ 719
>$1,000,000

2023 33 | 2 | 56 | 1000 | 231
Revenue Not Available

2023 10.5 | - | - | - | -
Totals

2023 100.0 | 36 | 1000 3883 | 1000

Sources: 2023 D&B Data; Bank Data; "--" data not available. Due to rounding, totals may not equal 100.0%

Small Farm Loans

The distribution of borrowers reflects reasonable penetration among farms of different sizes. As
detailed in the following table, 76 percent of loans originated in the AA were to farming operations
with GARs of $1 million or less. While this level of lending is below the percent of businesses in
the assessment area with GARs of $1 million or less (98 percent), this is still a substantial majority
of loans. It was also discussed with management how the past couple of years have been really
-good for agriculture, driving up revenues, and that many smaller farming operations do not need a
loan to operate. This data and performance context demonstrate a willingness to lend to farms of
different sizes, in particular to the small farms located within the bank’s assessment area.

Distribution of Small Farm Loans by Gross Annual Revenue Category

Assessment Area: Springfield MSA

Gross Revenue Level % of Farms I # l % l $(000s) I %
<=$1,000,000

2023 98.0 | 19 ] 760 [ 3140 [ 752
>$1,000,000

2023 0.9 | 5 | 200 | e85 | 236
Revenue Not Available

2023 1.1 | - e - e
Totals

2023 100.0 | 25 [ 100 | 415 [ 1000

Sources: 2023 D&B Data; Bank Data; "--" data not available. Due to rounding, totals may not equal 100.0%
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St. Louis, MO-IL MSA - Full-Scope Review

DESCRIPTION OF INSTITUTION’S OPERATIONS IN ST LOUIS, MO-IL
MSA

WBSB operates two offices in Macoupin County, Illinois; Modesto and Palmyra, both located in
moderate-income tracts. As of June 30, 2023, bank deposits in the assessment area represented 27.5

percent of total deposits of the bank. This AA carries less weight than the Springfield MSA AA.

Economic and Demographic Data

This assessment area includes six census tracts in northern Macoupin County and two census tracts
in eastern Greene County. Although Macoupin County is located within the St. Louis MSA, the
tracts where the bank has branches and the surrounding areas, including in Greene County, are
predominately rural. The population in this AA is 24,074 according to 2020 U.S. Census data. Of
the eight census tracts in the AA, four are moderate-income and four are middle-income tracts.
Since the previous evaluation, two tracts are re-categorized as moderate-income, and one tract is
now middle-income.

Demographic Information of the Assessment Area
Assessment Area: St. Louis MSA

Demographic Characteristics # ;; (:)va 4 M&? :e);z::e l}gjt}‘; ‘E}Lpg: ; (ylj‘:: p
Geographies (Census Tracts) 8 0.0 50.0 50.0 0.0 0.0
Population by Geography 24,074 0.0 513 48.7 0.0 0.0
Housing Units by Geography 11,918 0.0 52.5 47.5 0.0 0.0
Owner-Occupied Units by Geography 7,499 0.0 49.5 50.5 0.0 0.0
Occupied Rental Units by Geography 2,348 0.0 63.8 36.2 0.0 0.0
Vacant Units by Geography 2,071 0.0 50.5 49.5 0.0 0.0
Business by Geography 1,753 0.0 538 46.2 0.0 0.0
Farms by Geography 255 0.0 39.2 60.8 0.0 0.0
Family Distribution by Income Level 6,798 28.4 193 21.1 31.2 0.0
Household Distribution by Income 9,847 29.0 16.3 17.5 37.2 0.0
Level
Median Family Income MSA - 41180 $84,758|Median Housing Value $107,544
St. Louis, MO-IL MSA
Median Family Income Non-MSAs — $68,958|Median Gross Rent $760
IL

Families Below Poverty Level 9.8%

Sources: 2020 U.S. Census and 2023 D&B Data

Due to rounding, totals may not equal 100.0%

(%) The NA category consists of geographies that have not been assigned an income classification.
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The 2022 FFIEC median family income levels are used to analyze home mortgage loans under the
borrower profile criterion. The low-, moderate-, middle-, and upper-income categories are
presented in the following table.

Median Family Income Ranges
Median Family Incomes <50% 50% (o <80% 0% to <I20% S 10%
St. Louis, MO-IL MSA Median Family Income (41180)
2022 ($96,800) I <§48,400 l $48,400 to <§77,440 l $77,440 to <§116,160 I >$116,160
IL NA Median Family Income (99999)
2022 (876,100) | <838,050 | $38,05010<860,880 | $60,88010<$91,320 | 2891320
Source: FFIEC

The local economy is largely based on service industries, which represents the largest portion of

businesses (30.4 percent); followed by non-classifiable establishments (16.2 percent), agriculture
(12.7 percent), and retail trade (10.8 percent). In addition, 92.3 percent of businesses in AA have
nine or fewer employees and 87.4 percent operate from a single location.

The analysis of small business and small farm loans under the borrower profile criterion compares
the distribution of loans to the distribution of businesses and farms by revenue category.
According to 2023 D&B data, the assessment area contained 1,753 businesses. Gross annual
revenues (GARs) for these businesses are below:

* 82.3 percent have GARs of $1.0 million or less,

* 4.1 percent have GARs over $1.0 million, and

* 13.6 percent have unknown GARs.

The assessment area also contains 255 farms. GARs for these farms are as follows:
* 98.4 percent have GARs of $1.0 million or less,
* 0.8 percent have GARs over $1.0 million, and
* 0.8 percent have unknown GARs.

The following table shows the unemployment rates for Macoupin County, Greene County, the state
of Illinois, and the national average over the past year. The unemployment rate in the AA remains
lower that the state, and in line with the national average.

Unemployment Rates

November 2022 November 2023
Area
% %
Macoupin County 34 3.7
Greene County 3.9 3.5
Illinois 42 42
National Average 3.6 3.5

Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics.
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Competition

The AA is moderately competitive for financial services due to the presence of several financial
institutions in the market. According to the FDIC Deposit Market Share data as of June 30, 2023,
nine financial institutions operated 14 offices inside the AA. Of these, WBSB ranked fourth with
an 8.4 percent deposit market share. The top two institutions accounted for 59.4 percent of the
market share.

There is also a moderate level of competition for home mortgage loans among several banks, credit
unions, and non-depository mortgage lenders. According to 2022 Peer Mortgage Data, 82 lenders
reported 494 residential mortgage loan originations or purchases in the assessment area. WBSB
ranked sixth with a market share of 4.3 percent among these lenders. The top five lenders accounted
for 47.2 percent of the total market share.

Community Contact(s)

As part of the evaluation process, examiners contact third parties active in the AA to assist in
identifying local credit needs. This information helps determine whether local financial institutions
are responsive to these needs and also shows what credit opportunities are available.

Examiners used information from a community contact with a local realtor, which serves the
majority of the AA. The contact stated that the primary demographics are mixed between education
and ages, but is getting older on average and the population is shrinking some. A fair amount of
residents work locally, with some also commuting to the Springfield or St. Louis areas for
employment. The contact stated that the real estate market is hot and there is a shortage of homes
on the market. Overall economic conditions are mediocre though. The contact indicated that local
financial institutions are doing a good job of meeting the needs of the community.

Credit Needs
Considering information from the community contact, bank management, and economic and
demographic data, examiners determined that lending for home mortgages represent the credit

needs of the AA. The bank demonstrated reasonable performance in meeting these needs, as
detailed throughout this evaluation.

CONCLUSIONS ON PERFORMANCE CRITERIA IN ST. LOUIS MSA AA
LENDING TEST

Geographic Distribution

The geographic distribution of home mortgage, small business, and small farm loans reflects
excellent penetration throughout the assessment area. For this criterion, examiners focused on the
percentage by number of loans in moderate- income census tracts. This analysis presents only loans
originated inside the assessment area.
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Home Mortgage Loans

WBSB has demonstrated excellent penetration of home mortgage lending throughout its assessment
area in 2022. As shown in the following table, the bank’s lending in moderate-income tracts of 76.2
percent exceeded the percent of housing units in these tracts of 49.5 percent, and the aggregate
performance of 50.2 percent. WBSB’s performance in these tracts, along with the information from
the community contact signaling a need of home mortgages in these areas reflects positively on the
bank’s efforts to meet the credit needs of their AA.

Geographic Distribution of Home Mortgage Loans
Assessment Area: St. Louis MSA
% of Owner- Aggregate
Tract Income Level Occupied Performance # %o $(000s) Y%
Housing Units % of #
Moderate
2022 49.5 | so2 | 16 [ 762 [ 1432 | 768
Middle
2022 50.5 | 498 | s [ 238 | 43 [ 232
Totals
2022 1000 | 1000 21 | 1000 | 1865 | 100.0
Sources: 2020 U.S. Census; Bank Data, 2022 HMDA Aggregate Data, "--" data not available.
Due to rounding, totals may not equal 100.0%

Small Business Loans

The geographic distribution of small business loans reflects excellent dispersion throughout the AA.
The following table shows that the bank’s lending in moderate-income tracts was 21.9 percentage
points higher than the percentage of businesses in the area. Additionally, the amount of loans by dollar
volume was substantially larger (87.7 percent) in moderate-income tracts. This shows that WBSB has
is dedicated to meeting the credits needs in these tracts.

Geographic Distribution of Small Business Loans
Assessment Area: St. Louis MSA

Tract Income Level % of Businesses # % $(000s) %
Moderate

2023 53.8 | 28 | 757 ] 2202 | 77
Middle

2023 462 | 9 | 243 | 310 | 123
Totals

2023 100.0 | 37 | 1000 [ 2613 | 1000
Sources: 2023 D&B Data; Bank Data; "--" data not available.
Due to rounding, totals may not equal 100.0%
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Small Farm Loans

WBSB’s geographic distribution of small farm loans also reflects excellent dispersion throughout the
AA. Lending, by number, in moderate-income tracts exceeded D&B data of farms in these tracts by
55.8 percent. By dollar amount, 99.8 percent of small farm loans in the AA were originated in
moderate-income tracts. WBSB’s performance positively reflects on its efforts to meet the credit

needs of the AA.

Geographic Distribution of Small Farm Loans
Assessment Area: St. Louis MSA

Tract Income Level % of Farms l # [ % I $(000s) l %
Moderate

2023 39.2 | 19 ] eso | 3123 | 998
Middle

2023 60.8 | v ] so | 1 ] o2
Totals

2023 100.0 | 20 | 1000 | 3130 | 1000
Sources: 2023 D&B Data; Bank Data; "--" data not available.
Due to rounding, totals may not equal 100.0%

Borrower Profile
The distribution of borrowers reflects reasonable penetration among individuals of different

incomes and businesses of different sizes. Examiners focused on the percentage by number of
home mortgage loans to low- and moderate- income borrowers, as well as by number of small
business and small farm loans to businesses and farms with GARs of $1 million or less. This
analysis presents only loans originated inside the assessment area.

Home Mortgage Loans
WBSB reflects reasonable penetration among borrowers of different incomes in its home mortgage

lending in 2022. Examiners compared the bank’s performance to demographic data and aggregate
performance.

As shown in the following table, the bank originated 23.8 percent of its home mortgage loans to low-
income borrowers. This level of performance is also greater than the aggregate performance of 22.1
percent. While the bank’s performance and aggregate are below the demographic data of 28.4 percent,
9.8 percent of assessment area families had incomes below the poverty level. These families typically
do not possess the financial means to qualify for or afford a home mortgage loan due to financial
constraints. Additionally, the bank’s lending to moderate-income borrowers of 38.1 percent exceeds
both the population percentage and aggregate performance of 19.3 percent and 25.7 percent,
respectively. The bank’s performance is reasonable in meeting the credit needs of their AA.
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Distribution of Home Mortgage Loans by Borrower Income Level
Assessment Area: St. Louis MSA
Aggregate
Borrower Income Level | % of Families | Performance # Y% $(000s) %
% of #

Low

2022 284 | 20 | s ] 238 | 20 [ us
Moderate

2022 193 | 257 | 8 ] 1 | s | 317
Middle

2022 211 | 249 ] 2 ] o5 | 259 [ 139
Upper

202/ 312 | 152 | 4 | 190 | se9 [ 305
Not Available

2022 0.0 | 12.1 |2 ] o5 | 225 | 121
Totals

2022] 1000 | 1000 | 21 | 1000 [ 1865 | 1000
Sources: 2020 U.S. Census, Bank Data, 2022 HMDA Aggregate Data, "~ data not available.
Due to rounding, totals may not equal 100.0%

Small Business Loans

WBSB exhibited reasonable penetration to business customers of different sizes in 2023. As shown in
the following table, the bank originated 90.9 percent of its small business loans to businesses with $1
million or less in GAR. This level of lending is above the percent of businesses in the assessment area
with GARs of §1 million or less at 82.3 percent. This level of lending demonstrates the bank’s
willingness to lend to businesses of different sizes, in particular to small businesses located within the
assessment area.

Distribution of Small Business Loans by Gross Annual Revenue Category

Assessment Area: St. Louis MSA

Gross Revenue Level % of Businesses l # | % I $(000s) I %
<=$1,000,000

2023 82.3 | 10 ] 909 | 385 | 748
>$1,000,000

2023 4.1 | L | o1 | 10 | 252
Revenue Not Available

2023 13.6 | - e - | -
Totals

2023 100.0 | 1 | 100 | sis | 1000

Sources: 2023 D&B Data; Bank Data; "--" duta not available.
Due to rounding, totals may not equal 100.0%
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Small Farm Loans

The distribution of borrowers reflects reasonable penetration among farms of different sizes. As
detailed in the following table, 81.8 percent of loans originated in the AA were to farming
operations with GARs of $1 million or less. While this level of lending is below the percent of
businesses in the assessment area with GARs of $1 million or less (98.4 percent), the performance
represents a substantial majority of loans. It was also discussed with management how the past
couple of years have been really good for agriculture, driving up revenues, and that many smaller
farming operations do not need a loan to operate. This data and performance context reflects the
bank’s willingness to lend to farms of different sizes, in particular to the small farms located within
the assessment area.

Distribution of Small Farm Loans by Gross Annual Revenue Category

Assessment Area: St. Louis MSA

Gross Revenue Level % of Farms l # l % I $(000s) I Yo
<=$1,000,000

2023 98.4 | 9 | 818 | 1607 | 790
>$1,000,000

2023 0.8 ] 2 | 182 | 405 | 201
Revenue Not Available

2023 0.8 ] - e ~ | -
Totals

2023 100.0 | 1 ] 100 [ 202 | 1000

Sources: 2022 D&B Data; Bank Data; "--" data not available.
Due to rounding, totals may not equal 100.0%
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APPENDICES

SMALL BANK PERFORMANCE CRITERIA

Lending Test

The Lending Test evaluates the bank’s record of helping to meet the credit needs of its assessment
area(s) by considering the following criteria:
1) The bank’s loan-to-deposit ratio, adjusted for seasonal variation, and, as appropriate, other

2)

3)
4

5)

lending-related activities, such as loan originations for sale to the secondary markets,
community development loans, or qualified investments;

The percentage of loans, and as appropriate, other lending-related activities located in the
bank’s assessment area(s);

The geographic distribution of the bank’s loans;

The institution’s record of lending to and, as appropriate, engaging in other lending-related
activities for borrowers of different income levels and businesses and farms of different
sizes; and

The bank’s record of taking action, if warranted, in response to written complaints about its
performance in helping to meet credit needs in its assessment area(s).
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GLOSSARY

Aggregate Lending: The number of loans originated and purchased by all reporting lenders in
specified income categories as a percentage of the aggregate number of loans originated and
purchased by all reporting lenders in the metropolitan area/assessment area.

American Community Survey (ACS): A nationwide United States Census survey that produces
demographic, social, housing, and economic estimates in the form of five year estimates based on
population thresholds.

Area Median Income: The median family income for the MSA, if a person or geography is
located in an MSA; or the statewide nonmetropolitan median family income, if a person or
geography is located outside an MSA.

Assessment Area: A geographic area delineated by the institution under the requirements of the
Community Reinvestment Act.

Census Tract: A small, relatively permanent statistical subdivision of a county or equivalent
entity. The primary purpose of census tracts is to provide a stable set of geographic units for the
presentation of statistical data. Census tracts generally have a population size between 1,200 and
8,000 people, with an optimum size of 4,000 people. Census tract boundaries generally follow
visible and identifiable features, but they may follow nonvisible legal boundaries in some
instances. State and county boundaries always are census tract boundaries.

Combined Statistical Area (CSA): A combination of several adjacent metropolitan statistical
areas or micropolitan statistical areas or a mix of the two, which are linked by economic ties.

Consumer Loan(s): A loan(s) to one or more individuals for household, family, or other personal
expenditures. A consumer loan does not include a home mortgage, small business, or small farm
loan. This definition includes the following categories: motor vehicle loans, credit card loans, home
equity loans, other secured consumer loans, and other unsecured consumer loans.

Core Based Statistical Area (CBSA): The county or counties or equivalent entities associated
with at least one core (urbanized area or urban cluster) of at least 10,000 population, plus adjacent
counties having a high degree of social and economic integration with the core as measured through
commuting ties with the counties associated with the core. Metropolitan and Micropolitan
Statistical Areas are the two categories of CBSAs.

Family: Includes a householder and one or more other persons living in the same household who
are related to the householder by birth, marriage, or adoption. The number of family households
always equals the number of families; however, a family household may also include non-relatives
living with the family. Families are classified by type as either a married-couple family or other
family. Other family is further classified into “male householder” (a family with a male
householder and no wife present) or “female householder” (a family with a female householder and
no husband present).
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FFIEC-Estimated Income Data: The Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council (FFIEC)
1ssues annual estimates which update median family income from the metropolitan and
nonmetropolitan areas. The FFIEC uses American Community Survey data and factors in
information from other sources to arrive at an annual estimate that more closely reflects current
economic conditions.

Full-Scope Review: A full-scope review is accomplished when examiners complete all applicable
interagency examination procedures for an assessment area. Performance under applicable tests is
analyzed considering performance context, quantitative factors (e.g., geographic distribution,
borrower profile, and total number and dollar amount of investments), and qualitative factors (e.g.,
innovativeness, complexity, and responsiveness).

Geography: A census tract delineated by the United States Bureau of the Census in the most recent
decennial census.

Home Mortgage Disclosure Act (HMDA): The statute that requires certain mortgage lenders that
do business or have banking offices in a metropolitan statistical area to file annual summary reports
of their mortgage lending activity. The reports include such data as the race, gender, and the
income of applicants; the amount of loan requested; and the disposition of the application
(approved, denied, and withdrawn).

Home Mortgage Loans: Includes closed-end mortgage loans or open-end line of credits as defined
in the HMDA regulation that are not an excluded transaction per the HMDA regulation.

Housing Unit: Includes a house, an apartment, a mobile home, a group of rooms, or a single room
that is occupied as separate living quarters.

Limited-Scope Review: A limited-scope review is accomplished when examiners do not complete
all applicable interagency examination procedures for an assessment area.

Performance under applicable tests is often analyzed using only quantitative factors (e.g, geographic
distribution, borrower profile, total number and dollar amount of investments, and branch
distribution).

Low-Income: Individual income that is less than 50 percent of the area median income, or a
median family income that is less than 50 percent in the case of a geography.

Market Share: The number of loans originated and purchased by the institution as a percentage of
the aggregate number of loans originated and purchased by all reporting lenders in the metropolitan
area/assessment area.

Median Income: The median income divides the income distribution into two equal parts, one
having incomes above the median and other having incomes below the median.

Metropolitan Division (MD): A county or group of counties within a CBSA that contain(s) an
urbanized area with a population of at least 2.5 million. A MD is one or more main/secondary
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counties representing an employment center or centers, plus adjacent counties associated with the
main/secondary county or counties through commuting ties.

Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA): CBSA associated with at least one urbanized area having a
population of at least 50,000. The MSA comprises the central county or counties or equivalent
entities containing the core, plus adjacent outlying counties having a high degree of social and
economic integration with the central county or counties as measured through commuting.

Middle-Income: Individual income that is at least 80 percent and less than 120 percent of the area
median income, or a median family income that is at least 80 and less than 120 percent in the case
of a geography.

Moderate-Income: Individual income that is at least 50 percent and less than 80 percent of the
area median income, or a median family income that is at least 50 and less than 80 percent in the
case of a geography.

Multi-family: Refers to a residential structure that contains five or more units.

Nonmetropolitan Area (also known as non-MSA): All areas outside of metropolitan areas. The
definition of nonmetropolitan area is not consistent with the definition of rural areas. Urban and
rural classifications cut across the other hierarchies. For example, there is generally urban and rural
territory within metropolitan and nonmetropolitan areas.

Owner-Occupied Units: Includes units occupied by the owner or co-owner, even if the unit has
not been fully paid for or is mortgaged.

Rated Area: A rated area is a state or multistate metropolitan area. For an institution with
domestic branches in only one state, the institution’s CRA rating would be the state rating. If an
institution maintains domestic branches in more than one state, the institution will receive a rating
for each state in which those branches are located. If an institution maintains domestic branches in
two or more states within a multistate metropolitan area, the institution will receive a rating for the
multistate metropolitan area.

Rural Area: Territories, populations, and housing units that are not classified as urban.

Small Business Loan: A loan included in “loans to small businesses” as defined in the
Consolidated Report of Condition and Income (Call Report). These loans have original amounts of
$1 million or less and are either secured by nonfarm nonresidential properties or are classified as
commercial and industrial loans.

Small Farm Loan: A loan included in “loans to small farms” as defined in the instructions for
preparation of the Consolidated Report of Condition and Income (Call Report). These loans have
original amounts of $500,000 or less and are either secured by farmland, including farm residential
and other improvements, or are classified as loans to finance agricultural production and other loans
to farmers.
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Upper-Income: Individual income that is 120 percent or more of the area median income, or a
median family income that is 120 percent or more in the case of a geography.

Urban Area: All territories, populations, and housing units in urbanized areas and in places of
2,500 or more persons outside urbanized areas. More specifically, “urban” consists of territory,
persons, and housing units in places of 2,500 or more persons incorporated as cities, villages,
boroughs (except in Alaska and New York), and towns (except in the New England states, New
York, and Wisconsin).

“Urban” excludes the rural portions of “extended cities”; census designated place of 2,500 or more
persons; and other territory, incorporated or unincorporated, including in urbanized areas.
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